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Punch Taverns plc is an innovative pub 
company which owns more than 4,500 
tenanted and leased pubs in the UK.

SECTOR SPLIT
Our pubs are predominantly community
locals catering for the needs of their regular
customers, with the remainder made up of 
a diverse range of outlets.

A. Basic Local 29%
B. Mid Market Local 28%
C. City Local 11%
D. Upmarket Local 8%
E. Young Local 2%
F. City Dry Led 2%
G. Value Dining 5%
H. Premium Dining 5%
I. Circuit 4%
J. Chameleon 4%
K. Venue 2%

GEOGRAPHIC SPLIT
Our pub estate has an excellent geographical 
spread from the Outer Hebrides to Cornwall.
The concentration of pubs is linked to the origins 
of the business and the proximity to the former 
brewery owners. Our thorough acquisitions process
targets pubs based on the potential and quality 
of the site regardless of location.

Scotland 8%
North 2%
North West 11%
Yorks and Humber 14%
West Midlands 17%
East Midlands 6%
East Anglia 1%
Wales 7%
London 8%
South East 22%
South West 4%
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Who we are
Our business at a glance
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Punch’s key business goal is to help our retailers 
build better pub businesses, working with them 
on a local and national basis to help them to meet 
their business goals.

PUNCH’S GROWTH PROPELLER 
MODEL: MAXIMISING 
PROFITABILITY OF OUR SITES
The business model is a virtuous circle.
The 4,500 pubs that make up the current
Punch estate are some of the highest
quality leased and tenanted pubs in the
UK. Our strategy is to maximise the
performance of every one of them.

Attract the best
retailers
We are continually looking to recruit 
the highest quality talent and match
them to specific pubs that complement
their individual strengths and skills.
Retailers can apply online, browse
vacancies and sign up for email and text
message alerts detailing new business
opportunities. Our national ‘talent bank’
comprises more than 1,500 applicants.

Industry leading training
and support
Our award-winning training schemes
give retailers the best possible start in
business. More than 700 delegates have
been trained this year on everything
from marketing to cellar management.
Besides skills training, every retailer 
is assigned a dedicated Business
Relationship Manager to assist with
advanced business planning and 
profit building.

Develop full pub 
potential 
In order to maximise a pub’s potential 
it is often necessary to invest money
back into the business. We have
committed £33m to joint development
schemes at 539 individual outlets.
Every project, large or small, is carefully
planned according to the target market
and retailers’ specific objectives. Work 
is always evaluated on completion to
ensure its effectiveness.

Develop income 
streams
The modern day pub is about far more
than beer sales. We can help retailers
develop a food offering or source wines
from across the world. Our machines
management service can access the
latest gaming technology at competitive
prices. Business-building tips and 
special offers are circulated monthly 
to all retailers.

Acquire more pubs
We make a good return from acquiring
new pubs. This year we acquired 283
pubs through package deals with
companies including Spirit Group,
Honeycombe Leisure and Greene 
King, together with the purchase of
Conquest Inns, and agreements with
individual freeholders. Our sale and
leaseback and bounty schemes have
proved highly effective in sourcing 
new acquisition leads.
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Highlights of 2003
A year of strong achievements 

“Punch is continuing to make steady progress, 
meeting all its operational and financial
targets and showing strong organic and
acquisitions growth.”
Phil Cox
Chairman

Turnover

UP 10%
Operating profit

UP 12%
Profit before tax

UP 22%
Earnings per share

UP 44%

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
• With more than 1,500 registered applicants looking

for pubs with Punch, we are confident about our prospects
for continued lettings.

• The Punch Growth Lease is our single biggest lease
agreement with 1,348 Growth Leases now in place.

• The 716 retailers who have attended our training
programmes during the year have been able to benefit
from the constant widening of scope of our programmes.

• Increased spend on pub developments to £33m
across 539 specific projects.

• Internal changes have created more effective
systems to allow Business Relationship Managers to focus
on helping our retailers build better pub businesses.

• Within the like-for-like estate, turnover growth in
the year was 2.6% leading to pub profit contribution
growth of 4.3%.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
2003 20021

Turnover £429m £392m
Operating profit £227m £202m
Profit before tax £113m £93m
Earnings per share 39.3p 27.4p
1 Continuing operations before exceptional and non-recurring items
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Chairman’s Statement
Dear fellow shareholder

The financial year to 23 August 2003 has
continued the strong development of the
Company from its creation in 1998 and since
its flotation in May of last year. The Company
has grown steadily from the original acquisition
of some 1,400 pubs from Bass to the position
today with in excess of 4,500 pubs spread
throughout Great Britain. Once again the
Company has fully delivered the expected
results, highlighting the continued vir tue of 
the Company’s straightforward business
model which focuses on organic and
acquisition growth from its high quality 
leased and tenanted pub estate.

Results
The financial results reflect the continued 
strong growth in all aspects of the business.
Key figures are:

• Turnover of £429m, a growth of 10%
• Operating profit of £227m, a growth 

of 12%
• Profit before tax for the year of £113m,

a growth of 22%
• Earnings per share of 39.3p, a growth 

of 44%

The growth in earnings per share reflects the
significant benefits of tax losses held within
the Company. On a pre-tax basis, growth in
earnings per share was 22%.

The Company’s business model has remained
consistent for a number of years and will
continue to do so for the foreseeable future.
Namely, to focus on organic growth of the
pub estate through effective recruitment of
high quality pub operators; training and
support; capital investment in our outlets; and
the continued development and extension of
preferential supply arrangements for our pubs.

In our constant like-for-like estate, comprising
90% of our outlets, organic turnover growth
of 2.6% led to growth in pub contribution of
4.3%. This was achieved by continued
progress in all our operational areas, including;

• Recruitment of retailers, with 1,348 retailers
now on our Growth Lease.

• Training, with over 700 retailers participating
in our award-winning training programme
last year.

• Improving our pubs through capital
investment, 539 value adding development
schemes progressed in the year.

Every year we continue to increase the
number of our acquisitions. And this year is
no exception, adding 283 new pubs in the
year including packages from Spirit Group,
Honeycombe Leisure and Greene King
together with the purchase of Conquest Inns.
These acquisitions have all been integrated
into our estate and are already earning strong
returns. We continue to see good acquisition
opportunities.

Our capital structure is highly efficient,
combining our equity with long-term fixed
rate finance which provides enhanced returns
to shareholders. Proceeds from the flotation
of the Company, together with cash generated
from our organic business in the year
continued to provide us with ample capital 
to make acquisitions.

People
At the beginning of the year we took the
opportunity to consolidate all of our office-
based staff in our new headquarters in
Burton upon Trent. During the year we have
continued to focus on maintaining the most
efficient management structure possible whilst
attracting further talented people to the
business. Following the move of Giles Thorley
into the position of Chief Executive, he has
continued to strengthen the team with the
appointment of Adrian Fawcett as Chief
Operating Officer, in August of this year.
Francis Patton became Customer Services
Director, reflecting the desire of the Company
to continue to improve its retailer relations.

Post year end activity
Building on this excellent performance for the
year just finished, we have undertaken two
transformational activities since the year end.
The refinancing programme was completed 
as reported in the Financial Review, which
lowered the cost of debt and raised £265m
to suppor t future acquisitions. This was
followed by the acquisition, subject to
shareholder approval, of the Pubmaster
business of over 3,100 pubs for £1,193m.
Both these activities are earnings enhancing
and position the Company for future growth.

Phil Cox
Chairman

“Once again the Company 
has fully delivered the
expected results, highlighting
the continued virtue of the
Company’s straightforward
business model which
focuses on organic and
acquisition growth from its
high quality leased and
tenanted pub estate.”
Phil Cox
Chairman



Our strategy
Our ongoing strategy is, and always has been,
to maximise the performance of every one 
of our 4,500 mainly freehold pubs, generating
income streams from rent, from the sale of
beer, from the sale of other goods and
services and from gaming machines.

This foundation is further enhanced through
an ongoing acquisition programme and a
highly efficient capital structure which is
designed to enhance shareholder returns.

Our strategy is delivered through the
following areas.

Recruitment
We believe we place more emphasis than our
peers on attracting the right operator for
each of our outlets. Some 40% of new
applicants to Punch are now being sourced
through our website. This complements 
the local networking conducted by our
Business Relationship Managers (‘BRMs’) 
and Acquisition Managers. With over 1,500
registered applicants looking for pubs with
Punch, we are confident about our prospects
for continued lettings.

Training
Following the successes of 2002 where the
Company won three National Innkeeper
Training Awards, our training programme has
continued to go from strength to strength. The
716 retailers who have attended our training
programmes during the year have been able
to benefit from the constant widening of
scope of our programmes. These range from
the British Institute of Innkeeping accredited
Modern Licensed Retailer Course, designed
for new entrants to the industry through to
the eX! Factor Programme, a highly focused
marketing programme designed to enhance
retailer profitability.

Our training programmes are monitored and
evaluated and we are pleased to say that
some 85% of retailers who attended our
courses would recommend them to others,
with 70% showing improved profitability
following the training.

Internal training for BRMs has focused on 
the shift of emphasis of the role and
familiarisation with skills and competencies
aligned to a more customer orientated
approach. This development has been
supplemented by programmes designed 
to maximise the full potential of the pub 
and ’Planning for Growth’ – a programme
designed to enable BRMs to concentrate 
on value-adding activity through better 
use of technology and personal 
effectiveness techniques.

Punch Retailer Charter
The Retailer Charter was developed by Punch
in conjunction with a number of our retailers.
This comprehensive document is segmented
into eight easy-to-follow sections and 
is designed to assist our retailers in
understanding the responsibilities of both
Punch and the retailer at certain key times in
the life of our relationship – including granting
of the lease, rent reviews, investments and
expiry of the lease.

Customer service
The Retailer Charter is one of the new
initiatives generated by the recently created
customer services department. Headed up by
Punch’s first Customer Services Director, the
department is responsible for handling all
aspects of the retailer relationship.

The department includes ‘Frontline’ a one-
stop shop telephone helpline designed to
assist our retailers in all day-to-day enquiries
such as credit, drinks deliveries and dispense,
freeing up valuable time for our BRMs.
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Strategic & Operational Review
A year of strong achievements 

Service standards
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Business planning

The Punch Retailer Charter
The Punch Retailer
Charter was
designed to be easy
to use and update,
offering retailers
information in
clear and
straightforward
terms.

“Our strategy is to maximise
the performance of every one
of our 4,500 mainly freehold
pubs, generating income
streams from rent, from the
sale of beer, from the sale of
other goods and services and
from gaming machines.”

Giles Thorley
Chief Executive
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The creation of a customer services department
has encouraged the Company to reinforce the
service and support message in all areas of 
the business.

Our ‘Frontline’ team is trained to deal
with all retailer enquiries and to 
ensure that they are carried through 
to resolution.

HELPING OUR RETAILERS BUILD BETTER PUB BUSINESSES

IMPROVING 
RETAILER SUPPORT

40 forums
Attended by over 260 retailers
Communication is essential for good
relations and the forums are just one 
of Punch’s communications methods 
for working with retailers.

We have continued to focus on improving retailer support with three 
new initiatives providing the platform for our business relationship.

The Punch Retailer Charter is a single document designed to set 
out all major aspects of the retailer relationship and the way our 
commercial partnership works.

A series of retailer forums – regional and national feedback 
meetings – have been introduced on a quarterly basis giving over 
260 retailers the opportunity to discuss with senior executives the 
key elements of our relationship.

And Punch’s first awards scheme – the Shine Awards – attracted 
more than 350 pub nominations with entries being judged by the 
public through a national telephone and text vote, with call 
proceeds going towards Marie Curie Cancer Care.

Francis Patton 
Customer Services Director

The first ever Punch awards have been 
a great success and have highlighted
internally and externally the calibre of
Punch’s pubs and the skills of retailers.
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This year we have focused on maximising the
potential of every role in the Punch team to
make us as effective and efficient as possible. 

Internal changes have created more effective systems to allow
Business Relationship Managers to focus on helping our retailers
build better pub businesses.

Day-to-day administration previously dealt with by BRMs is 
now being handled by a newly created central operations support
function, who regulate and filter work through to BRMs.This gives
effective coordination of field communication and workload planning
and one central focal point between head office and operations,
delivering a consistent quality service.

A separate commercial team is now focused on negotiating 
the best possible deals with suppliers.

Bill Walker Andrew Thompson
Operations Director Operations Director

HELPING OUR RETAILERS BUILD BETTER PUB BUSINESSES

VALUE THROUGH 
OUR PEOPLE 

Our central operations team provide
support to our field based BRMs.



Operations
Following the successful completion last year
of the integration of the leased and tenanted
businesses under one operations infrastructure,
we took the opportunity to strengthen the
regional teams by centralising administration
which, coupled with Frontline, allowed the
role of the regional operations staff to change.
This resulted in the creation of a new role
called Business Relationship Manager (‘BRM’).
The BRM’s responsibilities are to focus on
providing direct support and advice to our
retailers and they have the autonomy to make
key decisions about the future of the outlet.

BRMs also have better business planning 
tools due to a significant investment in new
computer software.

The tailor-made system starts by building up 
a detailed picture of how a pub is performing.
Working with the retailer, the BRM inputs
data on the pub itself, its customer base,
competitors and current sales and
performance figures.

They can then create any number of scenarios
– including altering product prices or changing
suppliers – and see what the potential
outcome on profits would be.

Machines
With the continued extension of the Growth
Lease throughout the estate, the number of
pubs where we supply the gaming machines
has now increased to 51% of the estate.
This is a growth of 24% over last year and
has resulted in a continued growth of machine
income of 33%. We have also located 135
ATM machines across our estate, generating
an excellent 50% return on investment and
helping our retailers to grow their trade.

Beer
Punch continues to work closely with its
suppliers to ensure we make available to 
our retailers an excellent range of beers.

During the year we successfully renegotiated
our supply contracts with Coors and Interbrew
and this has had the result of consolidating 
the positions of Carling and Stella Artois as 
the No.1 standard lager and premium lager
respectively in our estate. Both supply
contracts resulted in improved margins overall.

Cask (or ‘Real’) Ale remains one of the most
potent symbols of the British pub. Our
commitment to cask ales within the estate
remains strong. The Company sold 128
different cask ales during the year, a total
volume of 145,045 barrels. Included in this
were 55 ales supplied as part of our rotating
Finest Cask scheme. In total over the last year
our cask ales have been sourced from 48
different suppliers.

Non-beer
Although the growth in the market for
flavoured alcoholic beverages has begun to
slow, the long period of warm weather in the
summer resulted in strong performance for
cider. Wines and spirits sales continue to grow
in part due to the extensive range of wines
available through our Connect to Wine
brochure. The Company has also recruited
nine Sales and Marketing Executives (‘SMEs’)
to develop non tied and new income streams
and to relaunch investments and allocate
promotions.

Through our ‘Buying Power’ brochure, which
includes deals on Walkers Crisps, cigarette
machines and Woodward Foodservice,
retailers have enjoyed significant savings.
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Adrian Fawcett (right)
joined Punch in August
2003 as Chief Operating
Officer, responsible for all
4,500 pubs, operations and
Punch’s ongoing business.

Strategic & Operational Review
Continued



The Punch Growth Lease
The Company renewed 192 leases following
the expiry of old agreements, 174 chose to
renew early, and converted onto our Growth
Lease, while 292 rent reviews were agreed
with an average uplift of 14%. From some 800
Growth Leases in place this time last year, the
Punch Growth Lease has now extended to
1,348 and is now our biggest single lease
agreement. Not satisfied to rest there, we are
already working on a further enhancement to
the Growth Lease, converting it into a plain
English agreement in a modular format to
help our retailers properly understand the
implications and to minimise costs.

Estate development
Our efforts to improve the calibre of our
retailers through our recruitment and training
programmes, together with the benefits
provided by the Growth Lease and our
support services is complemented by the
significant estate development programme.
In the year to 23 August 2003 the Company
committed some £33m to specific joint
development schemes encompassing a total
of 539 pubs.

Estate development is an important limb of
our organic growth programme and we have
therefore continued to improve and speed-up
the process of evaluating and executing
investment schemes. We have created a new
role in the Company, Regional Estates
Executive, that incorporates many of the roles

conducted by the Investment Manager and
the Estates Manager. It is the responsibility of
the Regional Estates Executive to ensure that
each of the properties in their region is
maximising its potential and, where necessary,
to execute investment programmes efficiently.
This year’s investments are currently
generating pre-tax returns of over 29% with
around 41% of the return achieved being
received in rent, with the balance being
received through income from additional sales
of beer, non-beer and machines. Last year’s
investments are continuing to perform well
and on average are generating further returns
of over 30%.

Acquisitions
The 283 pubs purchased in the year were
made up of the 61 Conquest Inns Ltd pubs
and packages from: Spirit Group (34 pubs),
Honeycombe Leisure (12 pubs), Greene King
(37 pubs), and Western Castle (12 pubs).
The balance of 127 pubs have been sourced
throughout the country by our team of
Acquisitions Managers.

Giles Thorley
Chief Executive
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Strategic & Operational Review
Continued

Formerly the Halfway House,
the recently created Epic Bar
and Brasserie now trades within
the premium dining sector.
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Alongside our retailers our pubs are 
our biggest asset and it is vital that we
maximise their potential.

The Compasses Inn, Shrewsbury, was
purchased in January 2003.A mid
market local with a strong community
following.

Our portfolio of more than 4,500 pubs create revenue streams from
rent and through the sale of beer. It is key to future growth that we
protect, maintain and grow these revenue streams through investment 
in our pubs.The 539 joint development schemes completed during the
year range from top to bottom structural refurbishments costing £1m
plus to ‘sparkles’, small investments from £10,000 upwards.

All investments are developed in partnership with the retailer and
Development Managers, who manage the process from start to finish.

New profit and rental streams are being developed through our
acquisitions programme and the quality of our estate is maintained 
by the ‘churn’ of under performing outlets which are disposed of.

Deborah Kemp
Property and Development Director

HELPING OUR RETAILERS BUILD BETTER PUB BUSINESSES

MANAGING OUR 
PORTFOLIO 
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Segmentation
Intense competition within the
sector has led many retailers to
diversify their offering. Developing
quality food offerings, focusing 
on live sport, even adding cash
machines and post office services
to pubs are all examples of how
diversification can help boost
customer loyalty – and profits.
Such is the range of pub types
included in our estate, the
Company has created individual
categories, or segments, to help
characterise them.

There are 11 segments in all,
each with their own trading and
customer distinctions.

Working out which segment a
particular pub falls into is
achieved by answering a series
of questions about everything
from location to product mix
and customer profile.

The process – known as
segmentation – has many
benefits for the pub company
and the retailer. It makes it
easier for both parties to
understand the market in which
they operate and be far more
targeted with investment
schemes and product
promotions.

It also aids recruitment, ensuring
new retailers are quickly
matched with pubs that
complement their skills and
their business plan.

The breakdown 
of each segment 
is as follows:

01 Basic Local 
These are community pubs,
mostly located in high 
density residential areas.

Trade is focused on regular
drinkers and tends to be wet
led with little food. Beer, cider
and spirits are the big sellers.
Most show televised sport.

Customers are generally blue-
collar workers and the
proportion of female 
customers is relatively low.

02 Mid Market Local
The ‘traditional British pub’ as
depicted in television soaps.

Mid market locals are mostly
situated in middle market
residential areas and most offer
some sort of food. There may
also be themed evenings,
quizzes, darts or pool.

Customers tend to use the pub
to meet friends and relax.

03 Upmarket Local
While still community pubs,
these are high class outlets
found in low density housing
areas. The business will be wet
led, but with a catering kitchen
providing good food.

Customers reflect the pub’s
location – white-collar workers
and professionals with a higher
proportion of women than
most other locals.

A Huge Variety of Pubs
A cross-section of our portfolio

01 03 06

05

04

Punch has one of the largest pub portfolios in the UK 
and the whole portfolio is constantly developing through
acquisition, investment and the changing trends of the
pub sector.

02
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04Young Local
Younger customers aged 18-30
are the focus here. Pubs draw
custom from the surrounding
area – they are still ‘locals’
rather than on the drinking
circuit – but demographics are
not as important as age.

The pubs tend to have a modern,
trendy feel. Amusements
including pool tables and
machines will feature and chart
music and video screens will be
prevalent. Draught lagers are
the most popular drink.

05 City Local
As the name suggests, these are
found in city or town centres
but away from the young
persons’ circuit.

Trading is highly competitive
and the offer will include basic
pub food and snacks.

Local workers and shoppers
provide passing trade in the
daytime – residents will
normally use the pub in the
evening.

06 City Dry Led
Centrally located but offering
high levels of food, city dry led
pubs target the same customers
as city locals.

Pubs tend to be larger and they
may have function rooms and
restaurant areas.

07 Chameleon
Also centrally located but the
pub’s character changes from
day to night to attract different
types of customers.

The venue may be a subdued
coffee bar in the day serving
office workers and shoppers,
but a vibrant young people’s
bar with loud music by night.

08 Circuit
Pubs will be on or near the
young person’s circuit.

Expect loud music, possibly 
a dress code and door staff.
Food is less important, while
lager and alcopops generate
strong sales.

09 Premium Dining
These are food led pubs in
more upmarket areas.
Restaurant quality food served
with flair will account for more
than 25% of sales.

Additional facilities are likely to
include beer gardens, play areas
and parking. Customers tend to
plan visits, sometimes around
special occasions.

10 Value Dining
Focusing on food but in less
upmarket areas than the
premium dining segment. Value
for money is the watchword,
so pubs often attract families.

11 Venue 
Distinctive, wet led pubs that
draw clientele from a wide
catchment area because they
offer something special.

This may be live music or
entertainers. The pub could
also be a meeting point for a
specific customer group, for
example bikers.

07

0908 11

10



Results for the year
The financial year covered 53 weeks up to 
23 August 2003. Results for the year should
be compared with results for the continuing
operations in the 52 weeks to 17 August
2002, before non-recurring and exceptional
items. This comparison is provided wherever
possible in the financial statements.

From turnover growth of 10%, improving
margins generated gross profit growth of 
13% and operating profit growth of 12%.
The benefits of financial gearing and a low 
tax charge in the year, accelerated growth 
in earnings to 44%.

Sources of turnover and gross profit
We have four sources of income, each of which grew in turnover and gross profit 
during the year.

“From turnover growth of
10%, improving margins
generated gross profit
growth of 13% and 
operating profit growth 
of 12%.”

Robert McDonald
Finance Director
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Financial Review
A year of strong achievements 

The key profit elements may be summarised as follows:

£m 2003 2002 Growth

Turnover 429 392 10%

Gross profit 276 243 13%
Administrative expenses (41) (35)
Depreciation/amortisation (7) (6)
Operating profit 227 202 12%
Profit on sale of assets 3 5
Interest (117) (115)
Profit before tax 113 93 22%
Tax (16) (25)
Net earnings 98 68 44%

EBITDA (excluding profit on sale of assets) 235 209 12%

Beer

Rent

Machine
income

Other
sales

Total

+7%

+10%

+13%

+33%

+13%

Turnover £m

2003 2002

£263m
£246m

£118m
£105m

£14m
£10m

£34m
£30m

£429m
£392m

£134m
£120m

£118m
£104m

£13m
£10m
£11m
£9m

£276m
£243m

Beer

Rent

Machine
income

Other
sales

Total

+11%

+13%

+13%

+33%

+25%

Gross profit £m

2003 2002



Like-for-like performance
We measure like-for-like performance across
all of the pubs which we have owned for the
last two years, ie. excluding only recent
acquisitions. This represented 90% of our
estate at 23 August 2003.

Within the like-for-like estate, across 52
weeks, turnover growth in the year was 2.6%,
leading to pub profit contribution growth of
4.3%.

Movements in the estate
We acquired 283 pubs during the year and
disposed (or de-licensed) 70. This net
increase of 213 pubs extended our estate to
4,515 pubs on 23 August 2003. The average
number of pubs operated during the year 
was 4,446.

At the year end, 68% of the estate was
contracted on long-term agreements, initially
of 10 years duration or more, of which 44%
(1,348 pubs) were on the Punch Growth
Lease. 7% of the estate was being operated
on temporary agreements, with 2% closed
pending sale or redevelopment.

Acquisitions and investments
We invested £121m on acquisitions, including
£26m on the company acquisition of
Conquest Inns (of which £12m relates 
to loans repaid following acquisition). This
represented an average cost of £428,000 
per pub.

Capital investment excluding new acquisitions
totalled £44m. Of this, £33m was invested 
on enhancement schemes in 539 pubs, £5m
was spent on minor capital items in pubs,
and £6m was invested in systems and
infrastructure projects.

Our disposals raised £15m in cash proceeds,
generating £2.5m profit above book value.

Revaluation of the estate
We have adopted a programme of rolling
estate revaluation such that every pub will be
professionally revalued over a five year period.
A representative sample of 889 pubs were
revalued by DTZ in 2003 and yielded a
surplus of £55m over their previous book
value. This has been accounted for through
reserves.

Borrowings and interest cost
The total borrowings for the Group at 
23 August 2003 were £1,554m, net of £74m
of cash collateralised loans. Overall net debt,
recognising cash held within the business of
£105m, was £1,450m, an increase of £40m
over prior year.

Of the borrowings, £1,448m has been raised
under two securitisation structures, Punch
Taverns Finance and Punch Funding II. Other

borrowings are term loans or rolling bank
facilities used to fund the acquisition of new
pubs. At 23 August 2003, £106m was drawn
down against committed facilities of £122m.

The weighted average interest cost of the
securitised borrowings including hedging was
7.7%. The interest cover on the operating
profit from the business averaged 1.95 times.

Refinancing
Since the year end, our debt structure has 
been revised.

The two securitised structures have been
merged and extended to include recent
acquisitions. The new securitised structure
covers 4,304 pubs and has total gross debt 
of £1,825m, all of which is investment grade.
The weighted average interest cost of the
new structure is 7.2%. The structure is a mix
of fixed and floating rate notes (see table
above), which amortise fully by 2033. The
floating rate notes are effectively fully fixed
by vir tue of hedge contracts.

As part of the restructure, the existing bank
facilities used for acquisitions have been
repaid and new facilities negotiated, creating
debt capacity for new acquisitions of £225m.

The refinancing increased our cash resources 
by circa £265m.

Taxation
The overall tax charge of £16m (14%)
reflects that the Group continues to benefit
from the utilisation of tax losses brought
forward from prior years. The Group’s actual
current year tax charge was £2m, with the
remaining tax charge relating to the provision
for deferred tax on the excess of capital
allowances arising on capital investments
made in the year.

Tax paid in the year was £1m.

It is anticipated that the Group’s tax charge
will rise to a standard 30% corporation tax
rate by 2006, as brought forward losses are
realised. Similarly the level of tax payable
going forward will increase.

Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share of 39.3p (diluted
39.2p) represents a 44% increase over the pro
forma earnings per share reported in 2002.

A significant element of this growth arises
from a reduction in the taxation charge. Had
taxation been consistent between the two
periods, the earnings per share growth would
have been equivalent to growth in pre-tax
profits, ie. 22%.

Dividends
The Board have recommended a final
dividend payment for the year of 4.4p per
ordinary share, increasing the full year
dividend to 6.5p per ordinary share. No
dividend was paid in the previous year.

Accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting
policies during the year.

Robert McDonald
Finance Director
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Summarised detail of the new financing structure is as follows:
Amortisation

Amt End Start
Rating3 Class Type (£m) % Rate1 date date

A/A2/A A1 Fixed 270 7.274 Apr-22 Jul-15

AAA/Aaa/AAA2 A2 Fixed 300 7.320 Jul-20 Oct-10

AAA/Aaa/AAA2 A3 FRN 150 L+0.62 Jan-09 Jan-04

A/A3/A M1 Fixed 200 5.883 Jul-26 Jan-09

A/A3/A M2 FRN 400 L+1.15 Jul-26 Jan-09

BBB+/Baa1/BBB+ B1 Fixed 140 7.567 Apr-26 Jul-22

BBB+/Baa1/BBB+ B2 Fixed 150 8.374 Jul-29 Oct-26

BBB/Baa3/BBB C Fixed 215 6.468 Apr-33 Jul-29
1,825 7.24

1 L represents Libor which is fully fixed through swap arrangements over the life of the tranche at 6.275%.
2 Tranches A2 and A3 include an Ambac wrap.
3 Ratings are as provided by Standard & Poors, Moodys and Fitch respectively.
4 Weighted average includes cost of a liquidity facility.
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Board of Directors
& Senior Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

0201 03

0504 06

0807 09

01 Giles Thorley
Chief Executive
Giles Thorley, 36, was appointed Chief Executive 
of Punch in January 2003, having joined Punch as
Executive Chairman in December 2001.
A qualified barrister, Giles attended the University of
London and the Inns of Court School of Law, before
joining Nomura in 1990 where he specialised in
property finance.
He was later responsible for negotiating the
acquisition of Inntrepreneur Pub Company Limited
(IPCL) and Spring Inns. Having developed a strategic
plan for the business, he joined as Chief Executive in
July 1998 to oversee its successful implementation.
IPCL was split into two businesses with the core
estate of 2,600 pubs forming the Unique Pub
Company.
Following its successful launch in December 1998,
Giles led a £810 million securitisation of the business,
followed by a series of acquisitions increasing the
estate to over 4,000 pubs. Unique was refinanced 
in March 2001 with a further securitisation of 
£335 million.

02 Phil Cox 
Independent Non-executive Chairman
Phil Cox, 53, was appointed Non-executive Chairman
of Punch in January 2003, having joined Punch as
Non-executive Deputy Chairman in May 2002. Prior
to his appointment, he was Chairman of Virgin Rail
from January until October 1998. He had also
served as Financial Director of Asda Group from
1992 to 1998, Group Chief Executive of The Burns
Anderson Group from 1988 to 1991, Non-executive
Director of Kelda (Yorkshire Water) from 1998 to
2000 and Group Finance Director of Horne
Brothers from 1985 to 1987. He is also a Director
of Allders plc.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
10 Adrian Fawcett
Chief Operating Officer
Adrian Fawcett, 35, was appointed Chief Operating
Officer with effect from August 2003.
He joins the Group from Interbrew where he was
Corporate Vice President of the Belgian brewer, for
the last year, globally responsible for business
integration of both Interbrew’s operational
businesses and the group’s M&A activity.
Adrian spent six years at Bass Brewers from 1996 
to 2001. During this time he held a number of roles
culminating in his position as Group Managing
Director of Bass Brewers Operating Companies
where he led Bass’s UK operating companies
through the period of its sale to Interbrew and the
subsequent restructuring and divestment of Carling
to Coors Brewers in 2002.

11 Deborah Kemp 
Property and Development Director
Deborah, 42, has responsibility for three key strategic
areas of the business. Firstly in maximising the
profitability of the property portfolio through
innovative and appropriate investment schemes
which optimise returns for Punch and its retailers.

1110 12

1413 15
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03 Robert McDonald 
Finance Director
Robert McDonald, 48, was appointed Finance 
Director of Punch Taverns in April 2002. Prior to this
appointment, he held the position of Finance Director
of the leased and tenanted estate of Punch Group
from 1999. He had previously served as Finance
Director at Allied Domecq Inns from 1995 to 1999.
He is a qualified chartered management accountant
and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants.

04 Peter Cawdron 
Independent Non-executive Director
Peter Cawdron, 60, was appointed Non-executive
Director of Punch in May 2003. He retired from the
Board of Grand Metropolitan plc in 1997, where he
had held the position of Group Strategy Director for
10 years and Group Planning Director for four years.
Previously, he had spent seven years in the United
States as Chief Financial Officer of D’Arcy MacManus
& Masius Worldwide, Inc., the international advertising
agency business based in New York, and seven years
at S.G.Warburg & Co. Ltd in London. He qualified as
a Chartered Accountant in 1966 at Peat, Marwick,
Mitchell & Co. He is also the Chairman of Capital
Radio plc and a Non-executive Director of a 
number of companies including Compass Group plc,
ARM Holdings plc, Capita Group plc and Johnston
Press plc.

05 Mike Foster
Independent Non-executive Director
Mike Foster, 58, was appointed Non-executive
Director of Punch with effect from May 2002. Prior
to his appointment he was Chief Executive of
Inntrepreneur Estates from 1995 until 1998, Chief
Executive of Courage Limited from 1987 until 1995
and Chairman of the British Pub & Beer Association
from 1998 until 2001. He currently has three other
Non-executive Directorships: W H Brakspear & Sons,
Roxton Bailey Robinson Ltd and the Peer Group Ltd.

06 Marc Jonas 
Non-executive Director
Marc Jonas, 34, was appointed Non-executive
Director of Punch in February 2003, having joined
Punch as Executive Director in April 2002. Prior 
to this appointment he held the position of Group
Property Director from October 1999. He was a 
co-founder and director of the original Punch Taverns
Limited formed in 1997 for the acquisition of the
Bass Lease Company. He is also a Director of a
number of companies including Wellington Pub
Company plc.

07 Cornel Riklin
Non-executive Director
Cornel Riklin, 47, was appointed Non-executive
Director of Punch in May 2000. Since 1999 he has
held the position of Managing Director of Texas Pacific
Group, the private equity group. He was previously
Group Managing Director at Trinity Mirror plc, where
he worked from 1993 to 1999, and Chief Executive
Officer of Borthwicks plc. Prior to that he worked for
Bain & Co. in London and San Francisco. He currently
also holds Non-executive Directorships at Spirit
Group Ltd. and Findexa SA.

08 Randl Shure
Independent Non-executive Director
Randl Shure, 39, was appointed Non-executive
Director of Punch in October 1999. Prior to founding
CapVest he was head of BT Capital Partners which
he joined in 1997 after working for 12 years with
Bankers Trust. He was a director of the original
Punch Taverns Limited, formed for the acquisition of
the Bass portfolio. He previously served as a director
of Virgin Rail and is currently a director of Young’s
Bluecrest Limited, IP Powerhouse and Ubiquity.

09 Fritz Ternofsky
Senior Independent 
Non-executive Director
Fritz Ternofsky, 59, was appointed Non-executive
Director of Punch in May 2002. He was previously a
member of the board of Compass from 1988 to
1999, also serving as Chief Executive for UK and
Scandinavia from 1993 to 1999. He is currently a
Non-executive Director of Exel plc and Care UK plc
and Non-executive Chairman of UKexplorer.com. He
is also the Chairman of Kew Green Hotels and a
Director of Dolphin Nurseries Ltd.

Secondly achieving growth through selective
acquisitions, and thirdly the effective property
management of the pub portfolio, including delivery
of rental growth and lease renewals and the
identification of opportunities for alternative property
development or disposals. Her property experience
ranges from general private practice to the licensed
retail business. Deborah joined Punch Taverns in 1998
as Director of Investment, prior to which she gained
invaluable operational experience as a Business
director with Bass Lease Company. Her qualifications
include a BSc (Hons) Urban Estate Surveying 
degree. She is a member of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors.

12 Francis Patton
Customer Services Director
Francis Patton, 40, is responsible for relationships with
key stakeholders through the management of HR,
external agents for PR/IR, internal communication and
retailer relationships. His role also encompasses
retailer sales and query resolution through telesales
and the help desks.
When Punch Pub Company was formed he became
Commercial Director and took up his new role in 
June 2003.

Francis has years of hands-on industry experience.
A graduate who joined Joshua Tetley in 1985,
Francis gained extensive experience in roles with 
The Tetley Pub Company before becoming
Commercial Director of Vanguard Pubs and
Restaurants, the leasing section of Allied Domecq.

13 Neil Preston 
Company Secretary
Neil, 43, is responsible for ensuring that the Company
meets all our legal and regulatory requirements as a
PLC. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and has held various jobs
within Punch, including that of the Finance Director of
Punch Group and Punch Retail (now known as Spirit
Group following the demerger in March 2002). Prior
to this he worked for Allied Domecq and started in
the industry in 1986.

14 Andrew Thompson
Operations Director
Andrew, 51, is responsible for implementing the
operational elements of the Company’s strategy
consistently through five Regional Operational
Directors. This involves developing and implementing
business plans based on growth opportunities,

maximising profit streams of sales margins, rental and
machine income, controlling operational costs and
implementing annual investment and acquisition plans.
Andrew has 30 years’ experience in the licensed
retailing sector and before becoming Operations
Director (North) was Regional Director for Punch
Taverns and Retail Director of Bass plc.

15 Bill Walker 
Operations Director
Bill, 42, shares responsibility with Andrew Thompson
for implementing the operational elements of the
Company’s strategy consistently through four
Regional Operational Directors.
Bill Walker was appointed as Operations Director
(South) in March 2002. Bill has over 20 years
experience in retailing. Prior to joining the Group he
had held the position of Retail Operations Director
at First Quench Retailing Ltd, since March 1999. Prior
to this appointment, he was a General Manager for
Sears plc based in Madrid.
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The Directors present their report and accounts for the 53 weeks ended 23 August 2003.

Results and dividends
The results of the Group for the period are set out in the Group Profit and Loss Account on page 29. An interim dividend of 2.1p per share was
paid to shareholders on 2 July 2003. The Directors propose a final dividend of 4.4p per share payable on 21 January 2004.

Principal activity and review of the business
The Group’s main trading activities are the operation of public houses. The Group’s customers are its lessees and tenants (known as ‘retailers’),
who enter into a lease or tenancy agreement with the Group to operate pubs. Through these agreements, the Group generates its income from
three primary sources: sale of beer and other products to retailers, rent from retailers, and profit sharing arrangements with retailers for income
from leisure machines. Each of the Group’s pubs is managed and operated by its retailer, enabling each pub to retain its distinct character.

A review of the year’s activities and future developments is included in the Strategic and Operational Review and the Financial Review.

Directors and their interests
The current Directors of the Company are listed on pages 14 to 15. Stephen Lambert retired from the Board on 5 November 2002.

The beneficial interests of Directors who held office at 23 August 2003 in the share capital of the Company are shown below.

At 23 August At 17 August
2003 2002*

Ord Shares Ord Shares

P Cox 266,146 266,146
G Thorley 137,750 127,750
R McDonald 46,909 46,909
M Foster 4,275 4,275
M Jonas 50,000 1,035,205
R Shure 93,037 93,037
F Ternofsky 21,000 21,000
C Riklin – –
P Cawdron (appointed 21 May 2003) – –

* or date of appointment, if later.

There were no non-beneficial interests.

None of the Directors have any interests in the shares of any other company in the same group.

There were no changes to Directors’ interests in shares or options between 23 August 2003 and 21 November 2003, being the latest practical
date prior to the printing of this report.

Having been appointed a Director since the last Annual General Meeting, the appointment of Peter Cawdron will cease and a resolution
proposed for his re-appointment at this year’s general meeting. Mike Foster and Randl Shure retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

A statement of the Directors’ remuneration and their interest in share options of the Company is set out in the Report on Directors’
Remuneration on pages 21 to 26.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 21 November 2003, the last practical date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has been notified of the following substantial
interests (representing 3% or more) in the Ordinary Shares of the Company.

• Texas Pacific Group, 21.8%
• Fidelity, 9.8%
• Morgan Stanley, 3.5%
• Quantum Industrial Partners, 3.4%
• Legal & General Investment Management Ltd, 3.0%

Directors’ Report
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Political and charitable contributions
During the year the Group made charitable contributions of £1,000 (2002: £6,000). The Group made no political contributions.

Disabled employees
The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the requirements of the job can be adequately
fulfilled by handicapped or disabled persons.

Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group’s policy wherever practicable to provide continuing employment under normal terms
and conditions and to provide training and career development and promotion wherever appropriate.

The environment
The Group regards compliance with relevant environmental laws and the adoption of responsible standards as integral to its business operation.
It is also committed to introducing measures to limit any adverse effects its business may have on the environment and will promote continuous
improvement in accordance with best available techniques; these include a very active recycling programme at the Company’s head office. A
charter exists on smoking in public places, including restaurants and pubs, which has been agreed between the Department of Health and leading
hospitality industry groups. This charter, whilst not law, is supported by the government, who asked the industry to ensure that 50% of licensed
premises were compliant by December 2002. The Group has supported this initiative and is able to report that it is compliant with the charter.

Employee involvement
The total number of employees at the end of the period was 344. The Group recognises the value of its employees and seeks to create an
energetic, dynamic and responsive environment in which to work. It places considerable importance on communications with employees which
take place at many levels through the organisation on both a formal and informal level.

Employees are encouraged to own shares in the Company and the Group operates a SAYE Share Option Scheme, in which 160 employees in
total participate. Employees enter into a savings contract for either three or five years at the end of which they are entitled to purchase shares 
at a discount of 20% to the market price of the shares at the time of the issue of the options.

Creditor payment policy and practice
It is the Group’s policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with those terms and conditions agreed between the company and 
its suppliers, provided that all trading terms and conditions have been complied with.

At 23 August 2003 the Company had Nil (2002: Nil) days purchases outstanding in trade creditors.

Post balance sheet events
As described in note 32 to the accounts, the Group concluded a refinancing on 3 November 2003 and on 6 November 2003 the Directors
announced that Punch Taverns Reserve Company Ltd, a Group company, had entered into an agreement relating to the purchase of the entire
ordinary issued share capital of Pubmistress Ltd.

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s auditors will be put to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

Neil Preston
Company Secretary
27 November 2003

Directors’ Report continued
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Compliance
The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance, for which the Board is accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
The Directors consider that the Company has complied with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the current Code throughout the year and 
to the date of this report.

The Board has reviewed the recommendations of the Higgs review on Non-executive Directors and the Smith Report on Audit Committees, and
has considered the implications of the revised Combined Code on Corporate Governance which is effective for reporting years beginning on or
after 1 November 2003. It has determined that it already complies with the vast majority of the new requirements but to fully comply the Board
will be making arrangements for the terms of reference of the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit Committees to be made publicly available on
the Company website. The Board also plans to introduce a formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of the Board Committees
and individual Directors.

The Board of Directors
The Board meets at least ten times per annum and convenes additional meetings to consider matters that are time-critical. The Board has
established guidelines requiring specific matters to be subject to decision by the full Board of Directors, including material acquisitions and
disposals, investments and capital projects. This ensures that the Board maintains control over strategic, financial and key operational issues.

The Board is considered to be of sufficient size that the balance of skills and experience is appropriate for the requirements of the business.
The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive are held by different Directors and the Board is balanced by a strong Non-executive element. The
majority (five out of seven, following the appointment of Peter Cawdron in May 2003) of the Non-executive Directors are considered by the
Board to be independent of management and have no relationships which may interfere with their independent judgement. Fritz Ternofsky is the
senior independent Non-executive Director. The Board has determined that all Directors will be subject to re-election at least every three years.

The Board has a procedure through which the Directors are able to take independent advice in the furtherance of their responsibilities. The
Directors, each of whom has received appropriate training, have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with.

In accordance with the Combined Code, the Board has established guidelines requiring specific matters to be subject to decision by the full 
Board of Directors, including material acquisitions and disposals, investments and capital projects. To enable the Board to discharge its duties, all
Directors are given appropriate documentation in advance of each Board meeting. This normally includes a detailed report on current trading 
and full papers on matters where the Board will be required to make a decision or give its approval. In addition, the Board has established an
Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nominations Committee with formally delegated duties and responsibilities within written
terms of reference.

The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is chaired by Phil Cox and its other members are Randl Shure, Fritz Ternofsky and Mike Foster. Following the
recommendations of the Smith Report on Audit Committees, Peter Cawdron will take the role of Chairman of the Audit Committee, after the
Company’s Annual General Meeting. The Audit Committee meets at least three times per annum and senior management, including the Finance
Director and external auditors attend for part or all of each meeting. The external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee and
its Chairman. The Audit Committee considers all matters relating to internal control and reporting, external audits, the scope and results of the
audits, the independence and objectivity of the auditors and establishes that an effective system of internal financial control is maintained.

The Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Fritz Ternofsky and its other members are Phil Cox and Mike Foster. All members of this committee
are independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once per annum. The Chairman, the Chief Executive 
and other Directors may be invited to attend meetings as the Remuneration Committee considers appropriate. The Remuneration Committee
will consider all material elements of remuneration policy, remuneration and incentives of Executive Directors and senior management with
reference to independent remuneration research and professional advice in accordance with the Combined Code. The Remuneration Committee
has appointed Halliwell Consulting to provide this professional advice. The Remuneration Committee will then recommend to the Board on 
the framework for executive remuneration and its cost. The Board is then responsible for implementing the recommendations and agreeing the
remuneration packages of individual Directors. The Directors are not permitted, under the Articles, to vote on their own terms and conditions 
of remuneration.

The Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee is chaired by Mike Foster and its other members are Phil Cox and Cornel Riklin. The Nominations Committee
meets as required and will make recommendations to the Board on new appointments to the Board.

Corporate Governance
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Internal control
The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and risk management and for reviewing the effectiveness of those systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives. It should be recognised
that such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Combined Code requires
the Directors to review the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls. This relates to all controls, covering financial, operational,
compliance and risk management matters.

The Company has processes for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. These processes have been in place
for the whole of the financial year and have continued up to the date of this report. The processes are in accordance with the guidance of the
Turnbull Committee.

The key procedures which the Directors have established with a view to providing effective internal control are as follows:
• Regular Board meetings to consider a schedule of matters reserved for Directors’ consideration.
• An annual review of corporate strategy, which includes a review of risks facing the business.
• A risk management process which identifies the key risks facing the business and how these risks are monitored and managed 

on an ongoing basis.
• An established organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and delegation of authority.
• Documented and enforced policies and procedures.
• Appointment of staff of the necessary calibre to fulfil their allotted responsibilities.
• Comprehensive budgets and forecasts, approved by the Board, reviewed and revised on a regular basis, with performance monitored 

against them and explanations obtained for material variances.
• A detailed investment approval process, requiring Board approval for major projects. Post investment appraisals are conducted and are

reviewed by the Board.
• An Audit Committee of the Board, comprising Non-executive Directors, which considers significant financial control matters as appropriate.
• The appointment of an internal auditor to perform continuous assessments of the quality and effectiveness of risk management and control.

Relations with shareholders
Communications with shareholders are given high priority and the Company aims to provide as much information as is commercially sensible 
to both existing and potential investors, recognising that transparency is the best way to develop understanding of the Company’s strategy,
performance and growth potential. The Company encourages two-way communication with both its institutional and private shareholders and
responds quickly to all enquiries. The Strategic & Operational Review on pages 4 to 8 and Financial Review on pages 12 to 13 include a detailed
review of the business and future developments. There is a regular dialogue with institutional shareholders as well as presentations after the
Company’s preliminary announcement of the year end results and at the half year.

The Board uses the Annual General Meeting to communicate with private and institutional investors and welcomes their participation. It is our
policy for all Directors to attend the AGM whenever possible. The Chairman aims to ensure that the Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees and the senior independent Non-executive Director are available at the Annual General Meeting and are available to
answer relevant questions.

Shareholders will be asked this year to vote on the Report on Directors’ Remuneration as required by the Directors’ Remuneration Report
Regulations 2002.

Non-audit services provided by the external auditors
In order to maintain the independence of the external auditors, the Board has determined policies as to what non-audit services can be provided
by the Company’s external auditors and the approval processes related to them. Under those policies work of a consultancy nature will not be
offered to the external auditors unless there are clear efficiencies and value added benefits to the Company. The Audit Committee monitors the
level of non-audit fees paid to the external auditors.

Going concern
After making enquiries, the Directors consider that the Company has adequate resources to remain in operation for the foreseeable future and
have therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Corporate Governance continued
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Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Your Board believes that a properly constituted and effective remuneration committee is key to ensuring that the Company’s policy on Executive
Directors’ remuneration supports the enhancement of shareholder value. The Board has therefore delegated to the Board’s Remuneration
Committee the assessment and recommendation of a broad policy on executive remuneration. The Remuneration Committee is formally
constituted with written Terms of Reference. The Committee is chaired by Fritz Ternofsky and its other members are Phil Cox and Mike Foster.
The Committee determines the remuneration and benefits packages for Executive Directors and any changes to their service contracts, as well 
as the remuneration of Senior Group Executives. The Committee also approves any share incentive and performance bonus arrangements. The
Remuneration Committee appointed, and received wholly independent advice on executive compensation and share schemes, from Halliwell
Consulting during the year. No other services were provided to the Company by Halliwell Consulting.

Except when his own remuneration was being discussed the Chief Executive, Giles Thorley, took part in discussions in relation to the
remuneration and benefits of the other Executive Directors and Senior Group Executives.

During the year the Company complied with The Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, and the recommendations of the Combined
Code on Directors’ remuneration as implemented by the Financial Services Authority in its Listing Rules for listed companies, including the Best
Practice Provisions of Schedule 1 of Section 1 of the Combined Code.

Part 3 of schedule 7a to the Companies Act 1985 requires that certain parts of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration are audited, whilst
certain other parts are not. Where disclosures are subject to audit, they have been marked as such.

Part A

Remuneration Committee policy
The Remuneration Committee’s policy is to set the main elements of the remuneration package at the following quartiles in comparison to the
Company’s comparator group:

Base Salary Annual Bonus Potential Share Incentives
Median At the Upper Quartile Upper Quartile

The aim of this policy is to provide remuneration packages that will retain talented people in the business, enable the recruitment of appropriately
skilled and experienced newcomers and be seen as competitive in the markets in which the Company operates.

It is the aim of the Remuneration Committee to encourage and reward superior performance. It is the opinion of the Remuneration Committee
that shareholders’ interests are best served by focusing a greater proportion of total remuneration on performance-related compensation.

The charts below show the current relationship between the performance elements and the fixed elements of the remuneration package for each
of the Executive Directors.

Incentive Compensation Fixed Compensation

Giles Thorley Robert McDonald

34%

66% 65%

35%
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It should be noted that the real value received by Executive Directors under the share incentive arrangements will be dependent upon 
the degree to which the associated performance conditions have been satisfied at the end of the three year performance period and whether 
the share price of the Company has increased from the date of grant.

Further to the proposed acquisition of Pubmaster, the Company will propose at the Annual General Meeting that shareholders approve the
adoption of the Punch Taverns plc Long-Term Incentive Plan, the Punch Taverns plc Deferred Share Bonus Plan and the Punch Taverns plc 
Share Incentive Plan, details of which are being issued to shareholders in a separate circular.

Comparator group
The Company’s current comparator group consists of the companies which constitute the FTSE 350 Leisure and Hotels Sector :

Carnival plc Holidaybreak plc Rank Group plc
De Vere Group plc Intercontinental Hotels Group plc Stanley Leisure plc
Enterprise Inns plc Luminar plc Wetherspoon (JD) plc
First Choice Holidays plc Manchester United plc Whitbread plc
Greene King plc Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc William Hill plc
Hilton Group plc Mitchells & Butlers plc Wolverhampton & Dudley Breweries plc

The basis of the selection of this comparator group was:
• Companies with related businesses to the Company.
• Companies of a comparable size to the Company (in terms of a mixture of capitalisation, turnover and number of employees).

The Remuneration Committee, with input from the Executive Directors, continually reviews the comparator group for its appropriateness 
to the current stage of the Company’s development and market factors generally.

Base salary
The Remuneration Committee’s policy is to set the base salaries of the Executive Directors at around the median by reference to the
comparator group.

Factors taken into account by the Remuneration Committee when determining each Executive Director’s base salary are:
• The median level of base salary for a similar position within the comparator group.
• The individual Executive Director’s performance.
• The responsibilities of the Executive Director.
• The experience of the Executive Director.

Performance bonus
The maximum bonus potential under the Bonus Scheme has been set above the upper quartile against the comparator group. The Remuneration
Committee believes that significant bonus potential coupled with challenging targets provides maximum incentive for the Executive Directors to
deliver short term value to shareholders.

The Bonus Scheme for 2003 was based on a variety of measures which supported the enhancement and retention of shareholder value.

The table below shows the maximum bonus available to the Executive Directors and the amount earned in respect of the 02/03 financial year :

Maximum Bonus As a % of
available as payable salary as at

a % of salary for 02/03 23 August 2003
Giles Thorley 133% £135,000 45%
Robert McDonald 125% £80,000 44%

The performance measures for the Bonus Scheme are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that they are appropriate to
the current market conditions and position of the Company, so that they continue to remain challenging.

Report on Directors’ Remuneration continued
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Share incentives
It is the aim of the Remuneration Committee to provide share incentive awards for Executive Directors at the upper quartile of those awarded
to similar executives in the comparator group. During the year it was the policy of the Remuneration Committee to make option grants
equivalent to 1 x salary to Executive Directors. However an additional grant equivalent to 1 x salary was made to Robert McDonald to ensure
parity with a broader peer group of Finance Directors.

The Company operates two option schemes by which Executive Directors and other executives are able to acquire shares in the Company.

The first is the Savings Related Scheme, whereby the proceeds from a ‘Save As You Earn’ savings contract can be used to exercise options granted
at the commencement of the savings contract at a discount of 20% to the market value at the date of grant. The second is a Discretionary 
Share Plan whereby options are granted over Ordinary Shares in the Company, at the prevailing market price at time of grant, exercisable
between three and ten years after date of grant, with performance targets set by the Remuneration Committee. Grants made during the year
require annual growth in earnings per share of RPI+3% to vest.

No options have been exercised by any Executive Director during the year and no options have lapsed.

The Remuneration Committee have conducted a review of the Company’s share incentive arrangements during 2003. Issues at the forefront 
of the Remuneration Committee’s deliberations have been:
• The current nature of the market and the Company’s business strategy.
• The proposed accounting changes for share options.
• The desire to introduce share incentive arrangements which are dependent upon a consideration of the Company’s performance 

compared to the comparator group.
• The use of a mixture of Share Options and Share Awards.
• The desire to increase shareholdings amongst new Executive Directors and Group Executives.
• The suitability of the current Share Option performance measure.

Pensions
Giles Thorley and Robert McDonald are entitled to receive a contribution into their personal pension arrangements representing 12% of 
their salary.

Benefits in kind
Executive Directors are entitled to receive standard benefits in kind appropriate for Executive Directors, such as car or car allowance, medical
insurance and life assurance.

Executive Directors’ service contracts
Details of the service contracts of the Executive Directors of the Company are as follows:

Name Company Notice Period Contract date Unexpired term of contract (months)
Giles Thorley 12 months 17 August 2001 Rolling Contract*
Robert McDonald 12 months 3 June 2003 Rolling Contract*

* Contract will continue until terminated on notice by either the Company or the Executive Director.

There are no special provisions for compensation in the event of loss of office. The Remuneration Committee would consider the circumstances
of any individual case of early termination and would determine compensation payments accordingly. A fair but robust principle of mitigation
would be applied to the payment of compensation in the context of professional advice received as to contractual entitlement.

All Executive Directors’ service contracts are initially for a fixed period of one year from date of appointment, and will continue thereafter unless
terminated by written notice of at least 12 months. This arrangement is in line with best corporate practice for listed companies.

Report on Directors’ Remuneration continued
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Non-executive Directors
The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors is determined by the Board based upon recommendations from the Chairman and the Chief
Executive (or, in the case of the remuneration of the Chairman, based on recommendations from the Senior Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chief Executive). The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors is reviewed against the same comparator group as that of the
Executive Directors. The Non-executive Directors are not eligible for performance related bonuses, share incentives and do not participate in 
any Punch Taverns plc pensions arrangements. It is the Board’s policy to take into account the following factors in determining the fees of the
Non-executive Directors:

• The median level of fees for similar positions within the comparator group companies.
• The time commitment each Non-executive Director makes to the Company (for example through membership of the Audit, Remuneration 

and Nomination Committees).

It is worth noting that the fees paid for the services of Cornel Riklin, Marc Jonas, Randl Shure and Mike Foster are paid to third parties 
for the provision of their services.

Details of the service contracts of the Non-executive Directors of the Company are as follows:
Name Company notice period Contract date Unexpired term of contract (months)
Peter Cawdron 12 months 21 May 2003 Rolling contract
Phil Cox 12 months 16 May 2003 Rolling contract
Mike Foster 12 months 16 May 2003 Rolling contract
Marc Jonas 12 months 21 February 2003 Rolling contract
Cornel Riklin 12 months 16 May 2003 Rolling contract
Randl Shure 12 months 16 May 2003 Rolling contract
Fritz Ternofsky 12 months 16 May 2003 Rolling contract

Total shareholder return performance graph
The graph below shows the Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR’) performance of the Company in comparison to the constituents of the FTSE 350
Leisure and Hotels index since the Company floated.

The Remuneration Committee consider the constituents of the FTSE 350 Leisure and Hotels index a relevant index for TSR comparison as the
index members represent the broad range of UK quoted leisure companies comparable to the Company.

Report on Directors’ Remuneration continued

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

21May02  31May02  Jun02 Jul02 Aug02 Sep02 Oct02 Nov02 Dec02 Jan03 Feb03 Mar03 Apr03 May03 Jun03       Jul03      Aug03     Sep03

Value of £1 invested (21 May 2002 – September 2003) 16 months

Punch Taverns FTSE 350 Leisure & Hotels Index



25 Punch Taverns plc Annual Report & Accounts 2003

Part B

(Information subject to audit)
The total of Directors’ emoluments in the year is £1,607,000 (2002: £1,118,000), including pension contributions of £90,000 (2002: £73,000). In
the prior year fees payable to employers of Directors appointed by the Company’s former investors were £73,000. The remuneration of the
Directors at the end of the year, from the date of their appointment as Directors was as follows:

Basic salary Performance Total Total
& fees Benefits related bonus Pension Other 2003 2002
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Giles Thorley 305 25 135 33 – 498 388
Robert McDonald 148 13 80 8 – 249 51
Marc Jonas 56 1 – 5 – 62 34
Phil Cox 100 11 – – – 111 23
Peter Cawdron 5 – – – – 5 –
Mike Foster 30 – – – – 30 7
Cornel Riklin 30 – – – – 30 7
Randl Shure 30 – – – – 30 15
Fritz Ternofsky 35 – – – – 35 8
Former Directors:
Stephen Lambert 60 18 115 44 320 557 292
Other – – – – – – 293

Total 799 68 330 90 320 1,607 1,118

Peter Cawdron was appointed to the Board on 21 May 2003. Stephen Lambert retired from the Board on 5 November 2002. Marc Jonas
resigned from his position as part-time Executive Director on 21 February 2003. He remains on the Board as a Non-executive Director.

Other emoluments comprises compensation for loss of office and full and final settlement of any other claims.

In the prior year, 266,146 ordinary shares were issued to Phil Cox as consideration for consultancy services provided prior to him becoming 
a Director. In addition 52,898 ordinary shares were issued to a former Director and a payment of £780,000 was made to another former
Director in respect of corporate finance services.

Pensions
Robert McDonald was a member of the Spirit Group Pension Scheme, a defined benefit salary scheme, and the Company contributed 23% of his
pensionable salary into the scheme. Pursuant to the Demerger in 2002 the Group ceased to participate in the scheme on 5 April 2003. Robert
McDonald’s pension entitlements under this scheme are as follows.

Increase in
Accrued benefits at Transfer Transfer transfer value
17 August 2002 and value at value at less Director’s

23 August 20031 23 August 20032 17 August 20022 contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000

Robert McDonald 65 714 648 63

1 Pension accruals shown are the amounts that would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the current year.

2 Transfer values have been calculated in accordance with Guidance Note GN11 issued by the actuarial profession. The transfer values represent the actuarial value of a liability of the pension plan and are
not a sum paid or due to an individual.

Since 5 April 2003 the Company contributes 12% of Robert McDonald’s pensionable salary to his individual defined contribution scheme.
Giles Thorley and Marc Jonas are entitled to receive a contribution into their personal pension arrangements representing 12% of their
pensionable salary. Marc Jonas’ entitlement ceased on his resignation as Executive Director.

Report on Directors’ Remuneration continued
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Executive share option scheme

No. of options No. of options No. of options No. of options
Date of held at held at Exercise already with vesting

grant1 17 August 2002 Granted Lapsed 23 August 2003 price vested criteria

Giles Thorley 1.12.01 5,901,230 – – 5,901,230 198p 2,722,759 3,178,4712

1.12.01 344,780 – – 344,780 205p 159,077 185,7032

5.12.02 – 154,639 – 154,639 194p – 154,6393

Marc Jonas 27.09.01 656,749 – – 656,749 198p 429,348 227,4012

27.09.01 38,308 – – 38,308 205p 25,043 13,2652

Robert McDonald 29.11.001 78,181 – – 78,181 192p 78,181 –
3.12.01 73,295 – – 73,295 205p 30,539 42,7562

5.12.02 – 69,588 – 69,588 194p – 69,5883

3.06.03 – 81,264 – 81,264 221.5p – 81,2643

Stephen Lambert4 29.11.00 312,725 – – 312,725 192p 312,725 –
23.08.01 488,633 – 238,119 250,514 205p 250,514 –

1 Original grant date, options granted to Robert McDonald on 29 November 2000 were in respect of a subsidiary Company, Punch Group (Equity) Ltd, and were converted to options over plc 
shares on Admission.

2 Outstanding options vest as follows, providing individuals continue to be employed by the Group: Giles Thorley – one third in May 2003 with the balance in monthly instalments over the following 
24 months; Marc Jonas – one half in May 2003 with the balance in equal monthly instalments over the following 12 months; Robert McDonald – one third in December 2002 with the remaining in equal
quarterly instalments over the following 24 months. These options may be exercised from their vesting date and must be exercised within 10 years of date of grant.

3 Options granted to Giles Thorley and Robert McDonald in December 2002, and to Robert McDonald in June 2003, are subject to a performance criteria of earnings per share growth of 3%+RPIpa 
against base year of August 2002. These options may be exercised between 3 and 10 years from date of grant.

4 Stephen Lambert retains those options that had already vested at the date of his retirement. His remaining options lapsed at that date.

SAYE share option scheme
Interests at 23 August 2003

As at
17 August
2002 and

Date of Exercise Options 23 August
grant date granted Exercised 2003

Giles Thorley 27.05.02 27.05.05 4,750 – 4,750
Robert McDonald 27.05.02 27.05.07 8,275 – 8,275

SAYE options have an option price of 200p per share and must be exercised within six months of the exercise date shown above. The Company
is taking advantage of the exemption allowed under UITF17(Revised) for accounting for options issued with a discount.

The market price of the Company’s shares on 22 August 2003 was 306p per share and the high and low share prices during the year were 
326p and 150p respectively.

On behalf of the Board

Fritz Ternofsky
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Report on Directors’ Remuneration continued
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Company Law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss for the Group for that year. In preparing those financial statements the Directors are
required to:

• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently.
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
• State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in 

the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in 
Respect of the Financial Statements
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We have audited the Group’s financial statements for the 53 week period ended 23 August 2003 which comprise the Group Profit and Loss
Account, Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, Group Balance Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Group Cash Flow Statement
and the related notes 1 to 32. These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out therein. We have
also audited the information in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, including the financial statements which are required to be prepared in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards as set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in relation to the financial
statements.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, United Kingdom Auditing Standards and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the part
of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also
report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law or the
Listing Rules regarding Directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statements on
internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk
and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. This other
information comprises Who We Are, Highlights of 2003, the Chairman’s Statement, the Strategic and Operational Review, A Huge Variety of
Pubs, the Financial Review, details on the Board of Directors and Senior Management, Directors’ Report, the Corporate Governance Statement,
the unaudited part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and Supplementary Information. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any
other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Report on the
Directors’ Remuneration to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to be
audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to be
audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:
• The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 23 August 2003 and of the

profit of the Group for the 53 week period then ended; and
• The financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with

the Companies Act 1985.

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered Auditor
Birmingham
27 November 2003

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the Members of Punch Taverns plc
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Period ended
23 August

20031 Period ended 17 August 2002*

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Total 

Before
non–recurring Non–recurring

and and
exceptional exceptional

items items Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m

Turnover: Group and share 
of joint venture 429.0 391.8 – 391.8 245.5 637.3
Less: share of joint venture turnover – – – – (2.6) (2.6)

Group turnover 2 429.0 391.8 – 391.8 242.9 634.7
Cost of sales (153.3) (148.5) – (148.5) (176.0) (324.5)

Gross profit 275.7 243.3 – 243.3 66.9 310.2
Administrative expenses (48.3) (40.8) (3.1) (43.9) (16.6) (60.5)

Operating profit 2,3 227.4 202.5 (3.1) 199.4 50.3 249.7
Share of (loss) of joint ventures – – – – (0.1) (0.1)

Trading profit 227.4 202.5 (3.1) 199.4 50.2 249.6
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets 2.5 5.0 – 5.0 2.0 7.0
Profit on disposal of investment – – – – 1.6 1.6
in joint ventures

Exceptional item:
Costs of fundamental reorganisation 4 – – (163.3) (163.3) – (163.3)

Interest receivable 6 7.4 6.7 17.2 23.9 0.6 24.5
Interest payable and similar charges 7 (124.0) (121.5) (63.6) (185.1) (36.4) (221.5)

Profit / (loss) on ordinary 113.3 92.7 (212.8) (120.1) 18.0 (102.1)
activities before taxation

Taxation 8 (15.7) (24.8) 20.8 (4.0) (1.5) (5.5)

Profit / (loss) for the period 97.6 67.9 (192.0) (124.1) 16.5 (107.6)
Ordinary dividend 10 (16.1) – – – – –
Special dividend 10 – – 93.4 93.4 – 93.4
Accrued dividend on non–equity shares 10 – – (28.6) (28.6) – (28.6)

Transferred to reserves 24 81.5 67.9 (127.2) (59.3) 16.5 (42.8)

Earnings / (loss) per share 
Basic (pence) 11(a) 39.3 (71.3)
Diluted (pence) 11(b) 39.2 (71.3)
Pro forma (pence) 11(c) 39.3 27.4

* The period ended 17 August 2002 relates to a 52 week period

1 The results for the period ended 23 August 2003 relate solely to continuing operations

Group Profit & Loss Account
for the 53 weeks ended 23 August 2003
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Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002*
£m £m

Profit / (loss) for the period 97.6 (107.6)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of tangible fixed assets 54.9 48.4

Total recognised gains and losses for the period 152.5 (59.2)

* The period ended 17 August 2002 relates to a 52 week period.

Note of Group Historical Cost Profit & Losses
for the 53 weeks ended 23 August 2003

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002*
£m £m

Reported profit / (loss) before taxation 113.3 (102.1)
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous periods 0.4 –

Historical cost profit / (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 113.7 (102.1)

Historical cost profit / (loss) retained after taxation and dividends 81.9 (42.8)

* The period ended 17 August 2002 relates to a 52 week period.

Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains & Losses
for the 53 weeks ended 23 August 2003
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August August
2003 2002

Notes £m £m

Fixed assets
Goodwill 12 53.3 55.4
Negative goodwill 12 (29.8) (31.5)

23.5 23.9
Tangible fixed assets 13 2,221.4 2,020.5

2,244.9 2,044.4

Current assets
Debtors due within one year 15 49.7 55.7
Debtors due after more than one year 15 12.8 14.9
Investments 16 – 0.1
Cash at bank and in hand1 26(c) 178.7 212.8

241.2 283.5
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 (324.7) (276.2)

Net current (liabilities) / assets (83.5) 7.3

Total assets less current liabilities 2,161.4 2,051.7

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (1,455.2) (1,490.9)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 (74.9) (66.4)

Net assets 631.3 494.4

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 0.1 0.1
Share premium 24 363.5 363.0
Revaluation reserve 24 102.9 48.4
Profit and loss account 24 164.8 82.9

Equity shareholders’ funds 25 631.3 494.4
1 Cash at bank and in hand includes £74.2m (2002: £87.0m) of deposits used as security for guaranteed loan notes.

On behalf of the Board

Giles Thorley Robert McDonald
27 November 2003 27 November 2003

Group Balance Sheet
at 23 August 2003
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August August
2003 2002

Notes £m £m

Fixed assets
Investments 14 378.8 378.8

Current assets
Debtors due in less than one year 15 148.0 97.3
Debtors due in more than one year 15 462.8 418.9
Investments 16 – 0.1
Cash at bank and in hand1 83.5 111.2

694.3 627.5

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 (533.6) (496.9)

Net current assets
160.7 130.6

Total assets less current liabilities 539.5 509.4

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 – –

Net assets 539.5 509.4

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 0.1 0.1
Share premium 24 363.5 363.0
Profit and loss account 24 175.9 146.3

Equity shareholders’ funds 539.5 509.4
1 Cash at bank and in hand includes £39.0m (2002: £50.0m) of deposits used as security for guaranteed loan notes.

On behalf of the Board

Giles Thorley Robert McDonald
27 November 2003 27 November 2003

Company Balance Sheet
at 23 August 2003
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Period ended Period ended*
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
Notes £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 26(a) 231.5 238.9

Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interest paid (118.5) (190.9)
Interest received 5.6 33.1
Cost of terminating financing arrangements (1.9) –
Deferred issue costs paid – (6.1)
Non–equity dividends – (0.5)

(114.8) (164.4)

Taxation
Taxation paid (1.4) –
Taxation received 0.1 4.2

(1.3) 4.2

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (137.5) (94.2)
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets 14.6 14.9
Purchase of investments in joint ventures (discontinued activities) – (0.8)

(122.9) (80.1)

Acquisitions and disposals
Payments to acquire subsidiary undertakings 27 (15.2) (9.4)
Net cash disposed on Demerger of subsidiary – (29.1)

(15.2) (38.5)

Equity dividends paid (5.2) –

Net cash outflow before financing (27.9) (39.9)

Financing
Issue of Ordinary share capital 0.5 173.8
Issue of Preference share capital – 16.0
Issue of share capital to minority interests – 3.0
Funds received from demerged entities – 656.5
Loans raised 52.8 37.2
Loans repaid (59.5) (822.6)
Expenses paid in connection with share issues – (5.2)

(6.2) 58.7

(Decrease) / increase in cash 26(b) (34.1) 18.8

*The period ended 17 August 2002 relates to a 52 week period.

The above cash flows in respect of the period ended 23 August 2003 relate to continuing operations whilst cash flows in respect of the period
ended 17 August 2002 relate to both continuing and discontinued operations (see note 26(g)).

Net cash inflow from operating activities includes outflows of £3.8m (August 2002: outflow of £12.9m) relating to exceptional items expensed
during the period ended 17 August 2002 (note 26(e)). Further, costs of terminating financing arrangements of £1.9m paid during the period
ended 23 August 2003 relate to exceptional costs charged to the profit and loss account during the period ended 17 August 2002, and deferred
issue costs paid during the period ended 17 August 2002 of £6.1m relate to exceptional costs charged to the profit and loss account in the
period ended 19 August 2000 (note 26(e)).

Included in interest paid in the period ended 17 August 2002 is £17.2m of interest rolled into loan balances.

Loans repaid in the period ended 17 August 2002 included £656.5m of Punch Funding II Ltd secured loan notes repaid from amounts received
from Spirit Group Ltd as part of the demerger of the managed business. Included in interest received in the period ended 17 August 2002 were
cash flows of £27.4m received from Spirit Group Ltd in settlement of their share of interest on the Punch Funding II Ltd secured loan notes since
Demerger. The Group paid out this amount as interest.

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the 53 weeks ended 23 August 2003
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1.Accounting policies

Accounting period
The accounting period of the Group ends on the Saturday falling between 17 August and 24 August each year. The accounting period ended 
23 August 2003 was of 53 weeks duration, the period ended 17 August 2002 was of 52 weeks duration.

Basis of preparation
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain properties within the Group and in
accordance with applicable accounting standards. In accordance with FRS 18 the Directors have continued to review the accounting policies.
There have been no changes in accounting policy.

Basis of consolidation
The Group accounts consolidate the accounts of Punch Taverns plc and all its subsidiary undertakings for the 53 weeks to 23 August 2003.

All subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Accordingly, the Group profit and loss account and statement of
cash flows include the results and cash flows of subsidiaries from the date of acquisition to the period end.

The comparative Group profit and loss account and statement of cash flows also include the results and cash flows of the demerged Managed
pub business for the period to 2 March 2002, being the date of its demerger from the Group.

On 2 March 2002, the Group was reorganised by separating the Managed pub business (‘Spirit Group’) and the Leased and tenanted pub
business (‘Punch Pub Company’) by demerging Spirit Group to form a separate group of companies (the ‘Demerger’). The Demerger was
achieved by paying a dividend in specie in the form of the Group’s shares in the Spirit Group.

Goodwill and negative goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised in the balance sheet within intangible fixed assets and is amortised over its useful economic life up to
a presumed maximum of 20 years. Acquisitions giving rise to goodwill and their associated amortisation periods of 20 years commenced as
follows:

Punch Taverns Group Ltd – September 1999
Commer Inns – December 2001
White Rose Inns Ltd – May 2002
Conquest Inns Ltd – December 2002

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions is included within intangible fixed assets and is amortised over the estimated useful life of the non-
monetary assets acquired, which is approximately 22 years. Acquisitions giving rise to negative goodwill and their associated amortisation periods
commenced as follows:

Inn Business Group plc – September 1999
Allied Domecq Retailing (Holdings) Ltd – September 1999

Fixed assets and depreciation
Valuation – Leased estate
Trading properties within the Leased estate are revalued professionally by independent valuers on a five-year rolling basis.

Surpluses arising from the professional valuation of the licensed estate are taken directly to the revaluation reserve. Valuation surpluses realised
on sale are transferred from the revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account reserve.

Any deficit arising from the professional valuation of properties is taken directly to the revaluation reserve until the carrying amount reaches
historical cost and thereafter, deficits below historical cost are charged to the profit and loss account except to the extent that the value in use
exceeds the valuation in which case this is taken to the revaluation reserve.

Cost – Managed estate (discontinued activity)
Properties in the managed estate were carried at their historic cost to the Group, less provisions for depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation – Leased estate
It is the Group’s policy to maintain the properties comprising the licensed estate in such a condition that the residual values of the properties,
based on prices prevailing at the time of acquisition or subsequent revaluation, are at least equal to their book values. The primary responsibility
for the maintenance of such properties, ensuring that they remain in sound operational condition, is normally that of the lessee as required by
their lease contracts with the Group. Having regard to this, it is the opinion of the Directors that depreciation of any such property as required
by the Companies Act 1985 and generally accepted accounting practice would not be material.
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1.Accounting policies continued

It is the opinion of the Directors that in respect of the Leased estate it is not practical or appropriate to separate from the value of the buildings 
the value of long life fixtures and fittings, which are an integral part of the buildings. This approach is supported by the opinion of an independent
external adviser.

Landlord’s fixtures and fittings in the Leased estate include removable items, which are generally regarded as within landlord ownership. These are
depreciated in accordance with the policy detailed below.

An annual impairment review is carried out on all properties in accordance with FRS 11 and FRS 15.

Depreciation is provided on other tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset evenly 
over its expected useful life, as follows:

Short leasehold properties – over the lease term
Landlord’s fixtures and fittings – 5 years
Office furniture and fittings – 5 years
Information technology developments – 3 to 5 years
Information technology equipment – 3 years
Motor vehicles – 5 years

Depreciation – Managed estate (discontinued activity)
Prior to the Demerger of the managed business, depreciation was provided on tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land which was not
depreciated, at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings – 50 years
Long leasehold land and buildings – 50 years
Short leasehold land and buildings – over the lease term
Public house fixtures and fittings – 5 to 25 years
Office fixtures and fittings – 3 to 10 years
Information technology equipment – 3 to 5 years

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future
have occurred at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as
more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against which to recover carried forward tax losses and from which the future
reversal of underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Provision is made for tax on gains arising from the revaluation (and similar fair value adjustments) of fixed assets, or gains on disposal of fixed
assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets, only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, there is a binding agreement to
dispose of those assets concerned. However, no provision is made where, on the basis of all available evidence at the balance sheet date, it is
more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged to tax only where the replacement assets 
are sold.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse,
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a 
non-discounted basis.

Leasing commitments
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1.Accounting policies continued

Pensions
Prior to Demerger the Group operated a defined benefit pension scheme, which required contributions to be made to a separately administered
fund. The principal employer was Spirit Group Ltd, which was disposed at Demerger, and consequently the Group ceased at that time to operate
its own defined benefit pension scheme. Employees of the continuing business who were members of that scheme continued to be members
following Demerger up until April 2003 when contributions ceased. Contributions to this fund were charged in the profit and loss account so as
to spread the cost of pensions over the employees’ working lives within the Group. Differences between the amounts funded and the amounts
charged in the profit and loss account were treated as either provisions or prepayments in the balance sheet. The Group now contributes to
money purchase plans in respect of employees who were members of the defined benefit scheme.

The Group contributes to money purchase pension plans for other employees. Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account as they
become payable.

Capital instruments
Shares are included in shareholders’ funds. Other instruments are classified as liabilities if they contain an obligation to transfer economic benefits
and if not they are included in shareholders’ funds. The finance cost recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of capital instruments
other than equity shares is allocated to periods over the term of the instrument at a constant rate on the carrying amount.

Derivative financial instruments are held to reduce exposure to interest rate movements. To qualify as a hedge the financial instrument must be
related to actual borrowings or a probable commitment and must reduce the risk of interest rate movements. Gains and losses arising on these
financial instruments are deferred and recognised in the profit and loss account only when the hedged transaction has itself been reflected in the
Group’s accounts.

The cost or income associated with caps and floors is recognised over the lesser of their duration or the period of the loans to which they relate,
so as to give a constant proportion of the related loan notes outstanding. In respect of interest rate swaps, interest differentials are recognised by
accruing for net interest payable.

If interest rate caps, floors or swaps are terminated early the gain or loss arising is spread over the remaining maturity of the original instrument.
If an instrument ceases to be accounted for as a hedge because the underlying financial position is eliminated, the instrument is marked to market
and any resulting profit or loss recognised at that time.

2.Turnover and segmental analysis

Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents amounts charged to third parties. The majority of the turnover is attributable to the
primary activity of leasing public houses to independent publicans, the wholesale supply of beer products to lessees (Leased) and, in periods prior
to the demerger of the managed estate on 2 March 2002, also related to retailing through pubs, restaurants, bars and hotels (Managed).

All turnover, operating profit and assets and liabilities in the current period relate to the Leased estate. Acquisitions in the period relate to the
Leased sector and do not have a material impact on the reported results.

Turnover and operating profit in respect of the period ended 17 August 2002 relate to both the Leased estate (continuing operations) and the
Managed estate (discontinued activities) up to Demerger on 2 March 2002. Following Demerger, all remaining assets related to the Leased estate.

Turnover, operating profit and net assets in respect of period ended 17 August 2002 are split by class of business as follows:

Turnover Operating profit Net assets
£m £m £m

Leased – continuing activity 391.8 199.4 494.4
Managed – discontinued activities 242.9 50.3 –

634.7 249.7 494.4
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3. Operating profit

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Amortisation
– Goodwill 3.4 3.2 – 3.2
– Negative goodwill (1.7) (1.7) (0.8) (2.5)

Depreciation of owned fixed assets 5.5 4.8 9.3 14.1

Auditors’ remuneration1

– Audit services 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2
– Non audit services – – – –

Operating lease rentals
– Land and buildings 2.9 2.7 3.6 6.3
– Plant and equipment 0.4 0.5 0.5 1.0

Non-recurring charges
– Minority interests2 – 0.7 0.3 1.0

Exceptional items
– Abortive bid fees – 1.4 – 1.4
– Taxation consultancy3 – 1.0 – 1.0
1 In addition to auditors’ remuneration set out above, fees were paid to the auditors of £2.4m in the period ended 17 August 2002 included as costs of fundamental reorganisation (note 4). In the current 
period fees of £0.1m were incurred relating to the acquisition of subsidiaries (note 27).

2 The minority interests, which represented employees’ shareholdings, were converted into shares in the Company on flotation in May 2002. As the Company’s shares are now traded on the London Stock
Exchange, there were no such charges in current period nor will there be any in subsequent periods.

3 Taxation consultancy costs incurred in the prior period were in respect of the successful resolution with the Inland Revenue of a capital allowance claim made by the Group in the period ended 
30 September 1998.

4. Costs of fundamental reorganisation

Relating to continuing operations

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
£m £m

Forgiveness of loan upon Demerger – 144.1
Other non-cash items – 2.4
Costs incurred in connection with Demerger, separation of financing arrangements and Initial Public Offer – 16.8

– 163.3

On 2 March 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries were reorganised by separating the managed pub business (‘Spirit Group’) and the leased
and tenanted pub business (‘Punch Pub Company’) by demerging Spirit Group to form a separate group of companies.

The forgiveness of loan arose in connection with the Demerger in order to re-allocate between the two businesses the debt owing under the
Punch Funding II Ltd loan arrangements.

Included in non-cash items was £1.8m write off of an investment held by PGL (A1) Ltd in the Company’s Class A Preference shares pursuant 
to a Court approved capital reduction.

Notes to the Accounts continued
for the 53 weeks ended 23 August 2003



38 Punch Taverns plc Annual Report & Accounts 2003

5. Staff costs

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Wages and salaries 14.1 13.2 61.2 74.4
Social security costs 1.3 1.3 3.2 4.5
Other pension costs 1.1 1.1 1.1 2.2

16.5 15.6 65.5 81.1

The average number of employees during the period was as follows:

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
No No No No

Management and administration 355 351 236 587
Retail staff – – 8,195 8,195

355 351 8,431 8,782

Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in the ‘Report on Directors Remuneration’ on pages 21 to 26.

6. Interest receivable

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Bank interest receivable 5.7 5.0 0.6 5.6
Amortisation of interest rate floor 1.7 1.7 – 1.7
Non-recurring credit
Interest receivable from Spirit Group Ltd (note 7) – 17.2 – 17.2

7.4 23.9 0.6 24.5

7. Interest payable and similar charges

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Bank and other loans 117.5 114.4 31.5 145.9
Amortisation of interest rate cap 2.1 2.1 – 2.1
Amortisation of deferred issue costs 1.8 1.7 0.9 2.6
Effect of unwinding discounted provisions 2.6 3.3 1.6 4.9
Non-recurring charges
Loan interest in respect of Spirit Group Ltd – 17.2 – 17.2
Series A, C and D loans – 43.9 – 43.9
Exceptional charges
Cost of terminating financing arrangements – 2.5 – 2.5
Accrual for loss on excess interest rate swaps – – 2.4 2.4

124.0 185.1 36.4 221.5
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7. Interest payable and similar charges continued

The accrual for loss on excess interest rate swaps for 2002 related to loans that had been repaid early.

Interest payable for 2002 includes £17.2m paid out of monies received from Spirit Group Ltd (see note 6) in respect of their share of interest 
on the Punch Funding II Ltd secured loan notes accruing between 2 March 2002, the Demerger date and the repayment of those secured loans 
on 28 June 2002.

8.Taxation

The tax charge is made up as follows:

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Current tax:
UK corporation tax 1.8 – – –
Tax under provided in previous periods (0.1) (4.2) – (4.2)

1.7 (4.2) – (4.2)

Deferred tax:
Current period charge 14.0 4.0 1.5 5.5
Deferred tax – under provision in prior periods – 4.2 – 4.2

14.0 8.2 1.5 9.7

15.7 4.0 1.5 5.5

Factors affecting current and future tax charges
The current tax charge for the period reflects the utilisation of brought forward losses not previously recognised as deferred tax assets.

The deferred tax charge arises in respect of the origination and reversal of timing differences. The Group’s current period deferred tax charge
reflects that in the period capital allowances exceeded depreciation. This position is expected to continue given the Group’s accounting policy 
not to charge depreciation on freehold and long leasehold property on the basis that this would not be material.

The tax charge will be lower than the standard corporation tax rate of 30% over the next two to three years if the Group is successful in using
brought forward losses.

The charge to UK corporation tax is reconciled as follows:

Reconciliation of tax charges

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 113.3 (120.1) 18.0 (102.1)

Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities at standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30%) 34.0 (36.0) 5.4 (30.6)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2.1 6.2 0.2 6.4
Timing differences relating to fixed assets (12.0) (11.8) (2.7) (14.5)
Short-term timing differences (0.9) (0.6) 0.6 –
Timing differences relating to interest on loans – (23.9) – (23.9)
Non deductible forgiveness of loan on Demerger – 43.2 – 43.2
Profit on disposal of joint venture – – (0.5) (0.5)
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets (0.8) (1.5) (0.6) (2.1)
Loss on sale of current asset investment – 0.5 – 0.5
Utilisation of tax losses brought forward (20.6) (1.6) – (1.6)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods (0.1) (4.2) – (4.2)
Intra-Group financing charges pre-demerger – 3.5 (3.5) –
Surplus current period losses – 22.0 1.1 23.1

Corporation tax charge / (credit) for period 1.7 (4.2) – (4.2)
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8.Taxation continued

Reconciliation of tax charges continued
The taxation charge for the period is reduced due to utilisation of brought-forward losses within the Group.

There is no taxation charge or credit for the period or the prior period in respect of the non-operating exceptional profit on disposal of fixed
assets or the cost of fundamental reorganisation.

The deferred taxation charge for the prior period was reduced by £1.4m as a result of exceptional items.

9. Profit / (loss) attributable to members of the parent company

The Company made a profit after tax for the period of £45.7m (August 2002: loss of £7.8m). The Company retained profits of £29.6m 
(August 2002: deficit of £41.4m).

10. Dividends

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
£m £m

Equity dividends on ordinary shares:
Interim paid 2.1 pence (2002: Nil pence) 5.2 –
Final proposed 4.4 pence (2002: Nil pence) 10.9 –

16.1 –

Non-equity dividends
Accrued dividend on non-equity shares – 28.6
Special dividend relating to the Demerger – (93.4)

– (64.8)

11. Earnings / (loss) per ordinary share

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings / (loss) per share is based on a total profit of £97.6m (August 2002: loss, after non-equity dividends, of £42.8m),
and weighted average number of equity shares in issue during the period of 248,037,266 (August 2002: 60,047,377).

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is the basic earnings per share after allowing for the dilutive effect of the conversion into Ordinary shares of the
weighted average number of options outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share of 39.2 pence (August 2002: loss per share of 71.3
pence) has been calculated using basic earnings of £97.6m (August 2002: loss of £42.8m) and after including the effect of all dilutive potential
Ordinary shares. The weighted average number of shares can be reconciled as follows:

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
No No

Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares 248,037,266 60,047,377
Dilutive effect from share options 966,363 –

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 249,003,629 60,047,377

(c) Pro forma earnings per share
A pro forma calculation is included rather than an adjusted earnings per share as defined by FRS 14, in order to better reflect the underlying
performance in the period ended 17 August 2002. This is achieved by reflecting the capital structure as if both the separation of the financing
arrangements of the discontinued business and the IPO had occurred on 19 August 2000.

The number of shares used for the purpose of calculating the pro forma adjusted earnings per share in the prior period is 248,000,000 being 
the number of shares in issue following flotation. This number of shares is used in the calculation as the majority of those shares were issued in
respect of either conversion from quasi-equity, being Series A, C and D loan notes and Preference shares, or funding the redemption of 
quasi-equity such that quasi-equity was eliminated by Demerger and IPO.
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11. Earnings / (loss) per ordinary share continued

For the period ended 17 August 2002, the calculation of adjusted earnings is based on the profit before non-recurring and exceptional items,
net of tax, in continuing operations adjusted for the following:
• Notional interest receivable under a pro forma assumption that IPO proceeds initially retained were received on 19 August 2000.
• Additional interest payable relating to the interest bearing element of realigned debt under a pro forma assumption that separation 

of the financing arrangements occurred on 19 August 2000.

It has not been necessary to make any adjustments to basic earnings or to the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of calculating 
pro forma earnings per share in the current period.

Basic earnings are adjusted as follows:

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
£m £m

Profit for the period* 97.6 67.9
Pro forma interest receivable less payable – 0.2
Taxation impact on pro forma adjustments – (0.1)

Pro forma earnings 97.6 68.0

* The comparative profit for the period relates to continuing operations before non-recurring and exceptional items.

12. Goodwill and negative goodwill

Negative
Goodwill goodwill Total

£m £m £m

Cost:
At 17 August 2002 64.9 (36.3) 28.6
Arising on acquisitions (note 27) 1.3 – 1.3

At 23 August 2003 66.2 (36.3) 29.9

Amortisation:
At 17 August 2002 9.5 (4.8) 4.7
Charge / (credit) for the period 3.4 (1.7) 1.7

At 23 August 2003 12.9 (6.5) 6.4

Net book amount:
At 23 August 2003 53.3 (29.8) 23.5

At 17 August 2002 55.4 (31.5) 23.9

Additions to goodwill relate to the goodwill arising on the acquisition of Conquest Inns Ltd (note 27).
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12. Goodwill and negative goodwill continued

Included in goodwill and negative goodwill are the following acquisitions:

August 2003 Charge / (credit)
Cost Amortisation in the period

£m £m £m

Goodwill
Punch Taverns Group Ltd 64.1 12.8 3.3
Commer Inns 0.2 – –
White Rose Inns Ltd 0.6 0.1 0.1
Conquest Inns Ltd 1.3 – –

Total goodwill 66.2 12.9 3.4

Negative goodwill
Inn Business Group plc (8.7) (1.6) (0.4)
Allied Domecq Retailing (Holdings) Ltd (27.6) (4.9) (1.3)

Total negative goodwill (36.3) (6.5) (1.7)

13. Group tangible fixed assets

Public house 
Land & fixtures and Other

buildings fittings assets Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation:
At 17 August 2002 2,021.0 10.4 3.6 2,035.0
On acquisitions 26.0 – – 26.0
Additions 126.3 7.0 4.2 137.5
Provision for loss on disposal (1.4) – – (1.4)
Disposals (10.2) (0.8) (0.2) (11.2)
Revaluation surplus 51.1 – – 51.1

At 23 August 2003 2,212.8 16.6 7.6 2,237.0

Depreciation:
At 17 August 2002 6.6 5.9 2.0 14.5
Provided in the period 1.6 2.9 1.0 5.5
Eliminated on disposals (0.2) (0.3) (0.1) (0.6)
Revaluation surplus (3.8) – – (3.8)

At 23 August 2003 4.2 8.5 2.9 15.6

Net book value:
At 23 August 2003 2,208.6 8.1 4.7 2,221.4

At 17 August 2002 2,014.4 4.5 1.6 2,020.5

The net book value of land and buildings may be analysed as follows:

Long Short
Freehold leasehold leasehold Total

£m £m £m £m

At 23 August 2003 2,089.7 97.2 21.7 2,208.6

At 17 August 2002 1,902.7 91.3 20.4 2,014.4
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13. Group tangible fixed assets continued

If land and buildings had not been revalued they would have been stated on a historical basis as follows:

Total
£m

Cost 2,117.6
Accumulated depreciation (11.9)

Net book value:
At 23 August 2003 2,105.7

At 17 August 2002 1,966.0

Gross book value
Following the revaluation of 20% of the estate in the current and previous period the split of land and buildings included at valuation 
or cost is as follows:

Cost or valuation Net book value
£m £m

At 2003 valuation 472.7 472.7
At 2002 valuation 424.6 424.6

897.3 897.3
At cost 1,315.5 1,311.3

2,212.8 2,208.6

As required by FRS 15 and FRS 11 the Directors have performed a review of fixed assets for impairment.

The Group’s policy is to carry properties within the estate at valuation. The trading properties within the Leased estate are revalued
professionally by independent valuers on a five-year rolling basis.

Surpluses arising from the professional valuation of the estate are taken directly to the revaluation reserve.

During both the period ended 23 August 2003 and period ended 17 August 2002, 20% of the licensed premises of the Group were valued in
accordance with market practice by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Ltd, Chartered Surveyors, acting as external valuers. The valuation did not include
any element relating to the trading potential of the licensed premises. The valuation of the remaining portfolio has not been updated, as the
Directors are not aware of any material change in value.

14. Fixed assets investments

Shares in
subsidiary

undertakings
£m

Company
Cost:
At 17 August 2002 and at 23 August 2003 378.8
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14. Fixed asset investments continued

Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings (in which the Group owns Ordinary shares), are as follows:

Name of Company Nature of business

Subsidiary undertakings
Owned directly:
Punch Group (Equity) Ltd Holding Company

All of which are directly or indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries of Punch Group (Equity) Ltd:
Punch Group (Retail Properties) Ltd Pub operating company
Punch Pub Company (VPR) Ltd Pub operating company
Punch Pub Company (PTL) Ltd Pub operating company
Punch Pub Company (Fradley) Ltd Pub operating company
Punch Pub Company (CMG) Ltd Pub operating company
Punch Pub Company (Supply) Ltd Intermediate supply company
Punch Taverns Beer Supply Company Ltd Intermediate supply company
Punch Funding II Ltd Financing company
Punch Taverns Finance Ltd Financing company
Punch Pub Company (Red) Ltd Financing company
Punch Taverns (Offices) Ltd Property company

All the above companies are wholly owned.

All companies were incorporated in England and Wales other than Punch Funding II Ltd, which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

15. Debtors

Group Company

August August August August
2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m 

Due in less than one year
Trade debtors 29.3 30.3 – –
Other debtors 4.1 8.1 0.1 0.3
Prepayments and accrued income 16.3 17.3 – –
Deferred tax (note 22) – – 2.6 5.0
Amounts due from Group undertakings – – 145.3 92.0

49.7 55.7 148.0 97.3

Group Company

August August August August
2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m 

Due after more than one year
Prepayments and accrued income 12.8 14.9 – –
Amounts due from Group undertakings – – 462.8 418.9

12.8 14.9 462.8 418.9

Amounts included in prepayments and accrued income due after more than one year relate to interest rate caps, swaps and swaptions.
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16. Current asset investments

Group Company

August August August August
2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m 

Other – 0.1 – 0.1

17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

August August August August
2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m 

Loans (note 19) 183.9 147.3 39.0 50.0
Trade creditors 35.2 30.2 – –
Other creditors 19.5 18.4 – –
Corporation tax 19.6 19.1 – –
Social security and other taxes 5.3 7.6 – –
Accruals and deferred income 50.3 53.6 0.8 1.4
Proposed dividend 10.9 – 10.9 –
Amounts owed to Group undertakings – – 482.9 445.5

324.7 276.2 533.6 496.9

18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

August August August August
2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m 

Loans (note 19) 1,444.6 1,475.6 – –
Accruals and deferred income 10.6 15.3 – –

1,455.2 1,490.9 – –
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19. Loans

August 2003 August 2002

Amounts falling due Amounts falling due
within after more within after more 

one year than one year Total one year than one year Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Issued by Punch Taverns Finance Ltd
Class A1 secured floating rate notes repayable 22.7 81.3 104.0 22.7 104.0 126.7
April 2008 at LIBOR for 3 month deposits 
+0.6% per annum
Class A2 secured floating rate notes repayable – 85.0 85.0 – 85.0 85.0
April 2011 at LIBOR for 3 month deposits 
+0.75% per annum to April 2008 and LIBOR 
plus 2% thereafter
Class A3 secured floating rate notes repayable – 95.0 95.0 – 95.0 95.0
April 2015 at LIBOR for 3 month deposits 
+0.95% per annum to April 2008 and LIBOR 
plus 2% thereafter
Class A4 secured fixed rate notes repayable – 270.0 270.0 – 270.0 270.0
April 2022 at 7.274% per annum
Class B secured fixed rate notes repayable – 140.0 140.0 – 140.0 140.0
April 2026 at 7.567% per annum
Class C secured fixed rate notes repayable – 25.0 25.0 – 25.0 25.0
January 2027 at 10.414% per annum to 2005 and
LIBOR plus 7.5% per annum thereafter

22.7 696.3 719.0 22.7 719.0 741.7
Add: premium arising from fair value adjustment 0.7 12.9 13.6 0.7 13.6 14.3
Less: deferred issue costs (0.3) (1.9) (2.2) (0.3) (2.2) (2.5)

23.1 707.3 730.4 23.1 730.4 753.5

Issued by Punch Funding II Ltd
Class A2 secured notes due 2020 at 6.82% per annum – 300.0 300.0 – 300.0 300.0
Class M secured floating rate notes due 2029 at 13.4 181.2 194.6 12.4 194.6 207.0
LIBOR plus 1.1% per annum to June 2005 and 
LIBOR plus 3.3% per annum thereafter
Class N1 secured floating rate notes due – 45.0 45.0 – 45.0 45.0
2030 at LIBOR plus 2.65% per annum to 
June 2005 and LIBOR plus 7.95% per annum thereafter
Class N2 secured notes due 2029 at 8.374% per annum – 150.0 150.0 – 150.0 150.0
Class O secured floating rate notes due 2030 at – 30.0 30.0 – 30.0 30.0
LIBOR plus 5.75% per annum to June 2005 and 
LIBOR plus 17.25% per annum thereafter

13.4 706.2 719.6 12.4 719.6 732.0
Less: deferred issue costs (1.2) (1.1) (2.3) (1.2) (2.3) (3.5)

12.2 705.1 717.3 11.2 717.3 728.5

Issued by Punch Taverns plc
Guaranteed loan notes 2009 39.0 – 39.0 50.0 – 50.0

Issued by other Group companies
Guaranteed loan notes 2004 35.2 – 35.2 37.0 – 37.0
Other bank loans 74.4 32.2 106.6 26.0 27.9 53.9

183.9 1,444.6 1,628.5 147.3 1,475.6 1,622.9

The bank loans are secured by charges over assets of certain Group companies.

Guaranteed loan notes of £74.2m for the Group (August 2002: £87.0m) and £39.0m for the Company (August 2002: £50.0m) are secured
against bank deposits of an equal amount guaranteed by Barclays Bank plc. The Guaranteed loan notes are repayable on demand at the option 
of the loan note holder up to the final repayment dates noted above.
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19. Loans continued

All loan notes issued by Punch Taverns Finance Ltd and Punch Funding II Ltd are repayable by instalments of which £1,274.7m (August 2002:
£1,303.3m) is payable after more than five years. The final instalment for each class of note being on the date indicated in its description.

With reference to Punch Funding II Ltd, the interest rates on the secured floating rate notes increase after 28 June 2005. The Group has the right
to redeem these notes at that date at their nominal value.

The other bank loans are at floating rates of interest linked to LIBOR.

The above secured loan notes have been secured by way of fixed and floating charges over various assets of the Group.

Hedging instruments
The Group has taken out various hedging instruments to reduce the interest rate risk associated with floating rate loans as follows:

Punch Taverns Finance Ltd
The Group has entered into interest rate swaps (including synthetic swaps) which swap the LIBOR interest rate on the Class A1, Class A2 and
Class A3 floating rate notes to fixed rates ranging from 6.2% to 6.5175% per annum. The capital amount of these swaps reduces over time to
match the expected repayment profile of the floating rate notes.

In October 2000 the Group entered into a swaption exercisable before 15 October 2005 which can swap LIBOR on a capital amount of up to
£25.0m for a fixed rate of 9% until October 2027.

Punch Funding II Ltd
The Group has entered into interest rate swaps which swap the LIBOR interest rate on the Class M, Class N1 and Class O floating rate notes to
a fixed rate of 6.4973% per annum. The capital amount of these swaps reduces over time to match the expected repayment profile of the floating
rate notes.

In June 2000 the Group entered into a swaption exercisable before 28 June 2005 which can swap LIBOR on a capital amount of up to £23.6m
for a fixed rate of 8% until June 2030.

Other bank loans
In January 2003 the Group entered into interest rate swaps which swap the LIBOR interest rate to a fixed rate of 4.44% until January 2005. The
nominal capital impacted varies over the life of the swap being £17.2m from January 2003, £21.8m from October 2003, £21.0m from April 2004
and £20.2m from October 2004 through to January 2005.

20. Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and some cash. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to provide finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade
creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group enters into derivative transactions. The purpose of such transactions is to manage the interest rate risks arising from the Group’s
sources of finance. It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments
shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and liquidity risk. There is no currency exposure as all
transactions and financial instruments are in sterling. The Board reviews and agrees policies for each of these risks and they are summarised
below:

Interest rate risk
The Group finances its operations through a mixture of equity shareholders’ funds, loan notes and other bank loans. The Group borrows at both
fixed and floating rates of interest and then employs financial instruments to generate the desired interest rate profile and to manage the Group’s
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The cash balances attract interest at floating rates.

Where over-hedging arises (for example, due to early repayment of floating rate notes) the Group will seek to eliminate the over-hedging, where
this is financially practical, either by embedding the cost in new swaps or by terminating the over-hedge.

As set out in note 19, the Group has taken out capital instruments such that 91% of all loans at 23 August 2003 (August 2002: 92%) were either
at fixed rate or were converted to fixed rate as a result of swap arrangements.
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20. Financial instruments continued

Liquidity risk
The Group is primarily financed by loan notes, with approximately 82% (August 2002: 82%) of the capital balance on these loan notes being
repayable after more than five years from the balance sheet date, subject to relevant covenants being met. The Board continues to review
alternative sources of finance. Cash balances are invested in short-term deposits such that they are readily available to settle short-term liabilities
or to fund capital additions.

The maturity of borrowings is:

Group Company

August August August August
2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m 

Within one year 183.9 147.3 39.0 50.0
Within one to two years 40.5 38.3 – –
Within two to five years 129.4 134.0 – –
After five years 1,274.7 1,303.3 – –

1,628.5 1,622.9 39.0 50.0

The maturity of other financial liabilities, which comprise interest rate floors and swaps, other liabilities due after more than one year and
provisions for liabilities and charges is as follows:

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Within one year 10.8 8.9
Within one to two years 9.7 10.7
Within two to five years 22.6 29.6
After five years 6.6 11.5

49.7 60.7

As permitted by FRS 13, short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the numerical analyses following in notes (a) to (c).

(a) Interest rate profile
The interest rate profile of the financial liabilities of the Group comprising borrowings and other financial liabilities (after taking into account
interest rate swaps that convert floating rate debt to fixed rate) was:

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Sterling:
Fixed rate 1,507.7 1,529.4
Floating rate 148.6 125.9
Nil rate 21.9 28.3

1,678.2 1,683.6

Total financial liabilities are analysed in note 20(c). Nil rate financial liabilities relate to interest rate floors and swaps, other liabilities due after
more than one year and the property lease provision. Details of the interest rates and repayment dates of borrowings are set out in note 19.

The weighted average interest rate on the fixed rate borrowings (including borrowings where swaps convert them to fixed rate) is 7.7% (August
2002: 7.6%) calculated using interest rates prevailing over the life of the borrowings and their weighted average period until maturity is 14 years
(August 2002: 15 years).

The weighted average period until maturity of the Nil rate liabilities is 3.2 years (August 2002: 3.5 years).

The floating rate liabilities bear interest at rates linked to LIBOR.

Financial assets include sterling cash balances of £178.7m (August 2002: £212.8m) that earn interest at rates linked to LIBOR. Other financial
assets are non-interest bearing.
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20. Financial instruments continued

(b) Borrowing facilities
The Group had the following unused borrowing facilities:

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Facilities expiring:
Within one year 3.6 49.0
Within one to two years – –
After two years 11.4 18.8

15.0 67.8

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
Set out below is a comparison of book values and fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities:

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
August August August August

2003 2003 2002 2002
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets:
Cash deposits 178.7 178.7 212.8 212.8
Interest rate caps, swaps and swaptions 14.9 4.0 17.0 4.4
Current asset investments – – 0.1 0.1

193.6 182.7 229.9 217.3

Financial liabilities:
Secured loan notes 1,447.7 1,615.0 1,482.0 1,588.0
Bank and other loans 180.8 181.0 140.9 140.0

Borrowings 1,628.5 1,796.0 1,622.9 1,728.0

Interest rate floors and swaps 12.5 65.0 15.6 64.0
Other liabilities due after more than one year 1.1 1.0 2.8 2.0
Provisions for liabilities and charges 36.1 34.0 42.3 40.0

Other financial liabilities 49.7 100.0 60.7 106.0

Total financial liabilities 1,678.2 1,896.0 1,683.6 1,834.0

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities have been estimated as follows:

Interest rate caps, floors, swaps and swaptions – Estimated market value
Current asset investments – Estimated realisable value
Secured loan notes – Estimated market value
Bank and other loans – Present value of the discounted future cash flows
Liabilities due after more than one year and provisions – Present value of the discounted future cash flows
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20. Financial instruments continued

(d) Hedges of future transactions
Gains and losses on derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged is recognised.
The cost or proceeds of acquiring or selling these derivatives is amortised over the lives of the related loans.

Unrecognised losses on instruments used for hedging, and the movements therein, are as follows:

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Unrecognised losses on hedges at beginning of period 61.0 124.1
Losses recognised in the period (14.5) (22.6)
Losses transferred on Demerger – (56.8)
Losses arising in the period that were not recognised in that period 16.9 16.3

Unrecognised losses on hedges at the end of the period 63.4 61.0

Losses expected to be recognised in the following period 15.7 13.3
Losses expected to be recognised beyond the following period 47.7 47.7

63.4 61.0

The losses of £14.5m realised in 2003 (2002: losses of £22.6m) are mainly attributable to the cost of swapping LIBOR for a fixed rate, which has
exceeded LIBOR throughout the period, and is included within bank and other loan interest payable.

The overall net loss reflects the costs of fixing interest rates on the Group’s secured loan notes and other loans, which are anticipated to be
expensed over the life of those secured loan notes and other loans.

21. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Onerous Property Deferred
contracts leases taxation Total

£m £m £m £m

Group
At 17 August 2002 32.4 9.9 24.1 66.4
Unwinding of discount effect of provisions 2.6 – – 2.6
On acquisitions – – 0.7 0.7
Charged to the profit and loss account – – 14.0 14.0
Utilised during the period (7.2) (1.6) – (8.8)

At 23 August 2003 27.8 8.3 38.8 74.9

The onerous contracts provision relates to termination costs due in respect of a beer supply contract. The termination costs are payable over
seven years and commenced during April 2000.

The provision for property leases has been set up to cover operating costs of vacant premises. The provision covers the expected shortfall
between rental income and rents payable including any other operating costs. Payments are expected to be ongoing on these properties for 
a number of years.
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22. Deferred taxation

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Group
The deferred tax balance consists of:
Capital allowances in advance of depreciation 52.0 39.3
Short-term timing differences (3.9) (4.8)
Losses (9.3) (10.4)

38.8 24.1

Deferred taxation assets not recognised are as follows:
Losses 16.6 36.4

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to losses that arise in companies where there are presently limited taxable profits against
which they may be offset only to the extent that it is more likely than not that these losses will be used in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax that has not been provided on revalued fixed assets and fixed assets subject to rollover relief, is estimated to be
£94.0m (2002: £60.0m). At present, it is not envisaged that any tax will become payable in the foreseeable future.

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Company
The deferred tax asset balance included within debtors consists of:
Losses 2.6 5.0

The deferred taxation asset not provided is as follows:
Losses 3.8 15.9

23. Share capital

August August
2003 August 2002 August

No 2003 No 2002
(000) £m (000) £m 

Authorised
Ordinary shares of 0.04786p each 104,479,333 50.0 104,479,333 50.0

August August
2003 August 2002 August

No 2003 No 2002
(000) £m (000) £m

Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 0.04786p 248,233 0.1 248,000 0.1

(a) Changes in share capital
Under the Discretionary share plan 225,748 Ordinary shares were issued at an average price of £1.95 per share and under the SAYE scheme
7,060 Ordinary shares were issued to employees at a price of £2.00 per share. The issue of these shares resulted in proceeds of £0.5 million.

(b) Rights of shareholders 
All Ordinary shares in issue at 23 August 2003 rank pari passu in all respects.
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23. Share capital continued

(c) Share options
The Company has two share option schemes by which Directors and employees are able to acquire shares in the Company.

SAYE Scheme
The first scheme is the Savings Related Scheme open to all employees, whereby the proceeds from a ‘Save As You Earn’ savings contract, of either
three or five years duration, is used to exercise options granted at the commencement of the savings contract at a discount of 20% to the market
value of the shares at the date of grant. Options may be exercised within six months of the maturity of the contract. This scheme was introduced
during the period ended 17 August 2002 with a further invitation to join during the current period.

Shares under option within this scheme are as follows:

Subscription price 
Number of shares (£) Exercise date

179,248 2.00 1 July 2005 to 1 January 2008
283,763 1.66 1 July 2006 to 1 January 2009

The scheme is Inland Revenue approved and the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from applying UITF 17 (Revised) in 
these accounts.

Discretionary Share Plan
The second scheme is a Discretionary Share Plan whereby options are granted to senior management over Ordinary shares in the Company, at
the prevailing market price at time of grant. These are exercisable between three and ten years after the date of grant, with performance targets
set by the Remuneration Committee. Performance targets for future grants are currently set at earnings per share growth of RPI +3%. The
options granted under this scheme prior to 5 December 2002 do not have performance criteria, and will vest provided the employee to whom
the options were granted remains within the Group up to the exercise date.

Details of the total number of shares under option and within this scheme as at 23 August 2003 are as follows:

Number of Subscription
shares under price

Date of grant option (pence) Exercise date

29 November 2000 58,636 64 27 May 2002 to 29 November 2010
29 November 2000 599,389 192 27 May 2002 to 29 November 2010
27 September 2001 656,749 198 27 May 2002 to 29 November 2010
27 September 2001 38,308 205 3 December 2002 to 3 December 2011
3 December 2001 5,901,230 198 27 May 2002 to 29 November 2010
3 December 2001 1,225,635 205 3 December 2002 to 3 December 2011
5 December 2002 1,160,123 194 5 December 2005 to 5 December 2012
3 June 2003 81,264 221.5 3 June 2006 to 3 June 2013
19 August 2003 116,129 310 19 August 2006 to 19 August 2013
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24. Reserves

(a) Group

Share Revaluation Profit & 
premium reserve loss account

£m £m £m

At 17 August 2002 363.0 48.4 82.9
Exercise of share options 0.5 – –
Surplus on revaluation of properties – 54.9 –
Realisation of surplus on disposal of revalued assets – (0.4) 0.4
Retained profit for the period – – 81.5

At 23 August 2003 363.5 102.9 164.8

(b) Company

Share Profit & 
premium loss account

£m £m

At 17 August 2002 363.0 146.3
Exercise of share options 0.5 –
Retained profit for the period – 29.6

At 23 August 2003 363.5 175.9

25. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

At the beginning of the period 494.4 234.5
Exercise of share options 0.5 –
Shares issued on flotation – 332.0
Issue costs written off share premium – (5.2)
Total recognised gains and losses 152.5 (59.2)
Equity dividends (16.1) –
Non-equity dividends – (7.7)

At end of period 631.3 494.4

26. Notes to the cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
£m £m

Operating profit 227.4 249.7
Cash flows in respect of costs of fundamental reorganisation (3.8) (10.5)
Depreciation 5.5 14.1
Decrease in current asset investments 0.1 –
Amortisation of goodwill / negative goodwill 1.7 0.7
Minority interests – 1.0
Increase in stocks – (0.4)
Decrease / (increase) in debtors 6.7 (4.2)
(Decrease) in creditors and provisions (6.1) (11.5)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 231.5 238.9
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26. Notes to the cash flow statement continued

(b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
£m £m

(Decrease) / increase in cash in the period (34.1) 18.8
Cash outflow from change in debt financing 6.7 146.1

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (27.4) 164.9

Bank and other loans of subsidiaries acquired in the period (11.5) (16.4)
Bank and other loans of subsidiaries transferred on Demerger – 811.1
Other non-cash movements in net debt (0.8) 20.9

Change in net debt resulting from non-cash flows (12.3) 815.6

Movement in net debt (39.7) 980.5
Net debt at 17 August 2002 (1,410.1) (2,390.6)

Net debt at 23 August 2003 (1,449.8) (1,410.1)

(c) Analysis of changes in net debt

At 17 August On Non-cash At 23 August
2002 acquisitions Cash flow movements 2003

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash at bank 212.8 – (34.1) – 178.7
Bank and other loans (1,622.9) (11.5) 6.7 (0.8) (1,628.5)

(1,410.1) (11.5) (27.4) (0.8) (1,449.8)

Cash at bank includes £74.2m (August 2002: £87.0m) of deposits which are used as security for guaranteed loan notes (note 19).

(d) Non-cash movements and material non-cash transactions
Included in analysis of changes in net debt (above):

Period ended Period ended
23 August 17 August

2003 2002
£m £m

Series A, C and D loan notes converted to Ordinary share capital – 131.8
Loan notes issued as consideration for acquisition of subsidiary undertakings – (9.2)
Loan notes in consideration for redemption of Preference shares – (16.0)
Interest rolled over on loan notes – (84.0)
Amortisation of deferred issue costs and premium on loan notes (0.8) (1.7)

(0.8) 20.9

There were no other material non-cash movements or transactions in the current period in addition to the above.
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26. Notes to the cash flow statement continued

During the period ended 17 August 2002 there were significant non-cash movements in addition to the above. These related to the IPO and
included the following:
• Ordinary shares having a book value of £42.1m were issued as consideration for the conversion of the Company’s Preference shares,

which had a book value of £36.2m and an accrued dividend of £5.9m.
• Directors’ and employees’ ‘L’ shareholdings in Punch Group (Equity) Ltd were exchanged for new Ordinary shares, having a book 

value of £6.1m.
• Ordinary shares with a book value of £13.9m were issued in consideration for outstanding fees due to holders of equity shares 

and A2 Ordinary shares and conversion of £3.5m of the total £4.0m special A2 dividend.
• Ordinary shares with a book value of £0.6m were issued as consideration for consultancy services.

During the period ended 17 August 2002, in addition to the non-cash movements detailed above, the Demerged business acquired shares in 
a joint venture undertaking for £0.9m satisfied by the transfer of properties at that value.

Demerger of the managed business
Other material non-cash items in respect of the period ended 17 August 2002 related to the demerger of the Managed pub business.

On 2 March 2002, the Group was reorganised by separating the Managed pub business (‘Spirit Group’) and the Leased and tenanted pub
business (‘Punch Pub Company’) by demerging Spirit Group to form a separate group of companies (the ‘Demerger’). The Demerger was
achieved by paying a dividend in specie in the form of the Group’s shares in the Spirit Group. The Demerger dividend in respect of the Group
represented the net liabilities of the Spirit Group at 2 March 2002, £2.2m, and satisfied the accumulated non-equity dividend at that 
time of £91.2m.

Forgiveness of loan
In order to facilitate the demerger in March 2002, the Group waived a loan due from Spirit Group of £144.1m.

(e) Cash flows relating to exceptional and non-recurring items
In the period ended 23 August 2003 there were cash outflows of £5.7m relating to exceptional costs and costs of fundamental reorganisation
expensed in the profit and loss during the period ended 17 August 2002. These comprised of:
• £3.8m included in operating cash flows relating to non-operating costs, being costs of fundamental reorganisation;
• £1.9m relating to cost of terminating financing arrangements.

In the period ended 17 August 2002 there were cash outflows of £19.0m in continuing operations relating to exceptional costs and costs of
fundamental reorganisation. These comprised of:
• £10.5m included in operating cash flows relating to non-operating costs, being costs of fundamental reorganisation;
• £2.4m of exceptional operating costs in respect of tax consultancy and abortive fees;
• £6.1m deferred issue costs paid relating to exceptional costs of issuing loans charged to the profit and loss account in the 

period ended 19 August 2000. These were paid on flotation.

In the period ended 17 August 2002 there was £17.7m of cash outflows relating to non-recurring items, £17.2m being interest previously rolled
into loan balances and £0.5m non-equity dividend paid at IPO.

(f) Cash flows relating to acquisitions
The subsidiary undertakings acquired during the period contributed net operating cash inflows of £0.5m.
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26. Notes to the cash flow statement continued

(g) Cash flows in prior period
The following table summarises the cash flows relating to continuing and discontinued activities during the prior period:

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total

£m £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 183.8 55.1 238.9
Returns on investment and servicing of finance (134.9) (29.5) (164.4)
Taxation receipts 4.2 – 4.2
Capital expenditure and financial investment (52.1) (28.0) (80.1)
Acquisitions and Demerger (9.4) (29.1) (38.5)

Net cash outflow before financing (8.4) (31.5) (39.9)

27.Acquisitions during the period

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Conquest Inns
On 31 December 2002 the Group acquired the entire share capital of Conquest Inns Ltd which operates a leased/tenanted estate of 61 pubs.

The acquisition is summarised as follows:

Fair value 
Book value adjustments Fair value

£m £m £m

Tangible fixed assets 17.7 8.3 26.0
Debtors 1.8 (0.8) 1.0
Creditors and provisions (1.6) – (1.6)
Loans (11.5) – (11.5)

Net assets acquired 6.4 7.5 13.9

Goodwill arising on acquisition 1.3

Total consideration 15.2
Add: bank loans repaid upon acquisition 11.5

26.7

Consideration is analysed as:
Cash paid in consideration 14.9
Loans repaid upon acquisition 11.5
Acquisition costs 0.3

26.7

The principal fair value adjustments were in respect of:
• revaluation of fixed assets
• waiver of loan to parent

The acquired business has not had a material impact on the reported results for the period.
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27.Acquisitions during the period continued

Conquest Inns continued
The trading results of the business acquired from the beginning of its financial year (being 28 January 2002) to the date of acquisition were as
follows:

£m

Turnover 3.3

Operating profit 1.6
Exceptional items (0.5)
Income from fixed asset investments 0.2
Interest payable less receivable (0.7)

Profit before taxation 0.6
Taxation (0.3)

Profit after taxation 0.3

The profit after taxation and retained profits for the acquired business for the year ended 27 January 2002 was £0.9m.

28. Financial commitments

August August
2003 2002

£m £m

Group
Contracted not provided 10.2 7.3

At 23 August 2003 the Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below:

Land & Land & 
buildings Other buildings Other

August August August August 
2003 2003 2002 2002

£m £m £m £m

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year – – – 0.3
Within two to five years 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
After five years 3.1 – 3.2 –

3.4 0.3 3.4 0.5

29. Pension commitments

The Group’s employees were previously members of the Spirit Group Pension Scheme. Until 5 April 2003 the Group continued to contribute 
to the scheme but no longer operated it. Employees of the continuing business who were members of that scheme continued to be members
following the Demerger until the Group ceased to participate in the scheme on 5 April 2003. The assets of the scheme were held separately
from those of the Group, being invested in managed funds.

The Group has its own defined contribution pension scheme into which existing members of the Spirit Group Pension Scheme will be given 
the opportunity to transfer the value of their benefits or they will be able to leave their deferred benefits in the Spirit Group Pension Scheme.
These transfers have yet to be arranged.
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29. Pension commitments continued

In the prior period contributions to the defined benefit scheme were charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives within the Group. The contributions were determined by a qualified actuary, on the basis of triennial valuations,
using the projected unit method. The most recent valuation was as at 5 April 2001. The valuation method used was the projected unit method
with the following main assumptions:

Long term average investment yield
– before retirement 6.8%
– after retirement 5.8%

Long term average earnings increase 3.9%

Increases to pensions in payment
– with 3% underpin 3.5%
– without 3% underpin 2.4%

Long term average price inflation 2.4%

The valuation showed that the market value of the scheme’s assets was £52.8m and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 92% 
of the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for future increases in benefits.

As a consequence of the Demerger, the Group was required to cease membership of the scheme by 5 April 2003 and, accordingly, has ceased 
to make contributions to or record any ongoing costs in respect of this scheme. The Directors have received independent advice and
correspondingly provided £2.1m (before deferred taxation) during the period ended 17 August 2002 relating to a potential one-off contribution
to the scheme in respect of the Group’s employees who were members of the scheme.

FRS 17 disclosures
The FRS 17 disclosures in the prior period allowed for the Demerger by splitting the figures for the whole Spirit Group Scheme at the start of
the period between continuing and discontinued operations and treated the two sections as separate entities thereafter. The current period
disclosures reflect the Group’s continued participation in the Scheme for part of the period. However, going forward the Group will not have any
deferred liabilities or assets associated with the scheme. The settlement gain in this period’s FRS 17 pension cost anticipates this position.

The Company contributed to the scheme at the rates of 23% of Pensionable Salaries for executives and 11% for others since the scheme
commenced on 5 April 2000.

The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries in updating the latest valuation scheme for FRS 17 purposes for the
periods ended 18 August 2001 and 17 August 2002 were:

Rate of increase in salaries – 4.0%
Rate of increase in pensions – 3.5% for former members of the Allied arrangements

– 2.5% for all other members
Discount rate – 5.7%
Inflation assumption – 2.5%

The contributions paid for the period (which equates to the charge for the period) in respect of the defined benefit scheme were £0.3m 
(August 2002: £1.6m).
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29. Pension commitments continued

FRS 17 disclosures continued
The assets and liabilities of the scheme and the expected rates of return in prior periods were:

In the continuing operations

Long-term Long-term 
rate of return Value at rate of return Value at

expected at 17 August expected at 18 August
17 August 2002 18 August 2001

2002 £m 2001 £m

Equities 6.7% 4.8 6.7% 5.3
Bonds 4.7% 0.9 4.7% 1.0
Other 4.7% 0.3 4.7% 0.3

Total market value of assets 6.0 6.6
Present value of scheme liabilities (9.6) (8.7)

Net pension liability before deferred tax (3.6) (2.1)
Deferred tax asset 1.1 0.6

Net pension liability (2.5) (1.5)

Equivalent figures to the above have not been provided for the current period as the Group no longer participates in the scheme.

In the discontinued operations at 18 August 2001

Long-term 
rate of return

expected at Value at
18 August 18 August

2001 2001
£m £m

Equities 6.7% 34.2
Bonds 4.7% 6.5
Other 4.7% 2.3

Total market value of assets 43.0
Value of scheme liabilities (56.8)

Net pension liability before deferred tax (13.8)
Deferred tax asset 4.1

Net pension liability (9.7)

Total operations as at 18 August 2001

Long-term 
rate of return

expected at Value at
18 August 18 August

2001 2001
£m £m

Equities 6.7% 39.5
Bonds 4.7% 7.5
Other 4.7% 2.6

Total market value of assets 49.6
Value of scheme liabilities (65.5)

Net pension liability before deferred tax (15.9)
Deferred tax asset 4.7

Net pension liability (11.2)

Notes to the Accounts continued
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29. Pension commitments continued

Had FRS 17 been implemented early then the impact on the balance sheet would be as follows:

August August August
2003 2002 2001

£m £m £m

Reserves:
Profit and loss account as reported 164.8 82.9 (203.1)
FRS 17 deficit in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme – (2.5) (11.2)
Add: accrual for potential one-off contribution, net of deferred tax (see above) – 1.5 –

Profit and loss account as restated 164.8 81.9 (214.3)

August August August
2003 2002 2001

£m £m £m

Net assets:
Net assets as reported 631.3 494.4 234.5
FRS 17 deficit in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme – (2.5) (11.2)
Add: accrual for potential one-off contribution, net of deferred tax (see above) – 1.5 –

Net assets as restated 631.3 493.4 223.3

The movement in the deficit during the period is as follows:

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Deficit in scheme (before deferred tax) at beginning of period (3.6) (2.1) (13.8) (15.9)
Movements in period:
Current service cost (0.2) (0.4) (2.2) (2.6)
Contributions 0.3 0.3 1.3 1.6
Other financial income (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) (0.3)
Actuarial loss (0.5) (1.3) (2.4) (3.7)
Provision for one-off contribution 2.1 – – –
Settlement gain 2.0 – – –
Deficit in scheme relating to discontinued activities – – 17.3 17.3

Deficit in scheme (before deferred tax) at end of period – (3.6) – (3.6)

Had FRS17 been implemented early then the impact on the other areas of the financial statements would be as follows:

Amounts credited / (charged) to operating profit

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Current service cost (0.2) (0.4) (2.2) (2.6)
Settlement gain 2.0 – – –

Total operating credit / (charge) 1.8 (0.4) (2.2) (2.6)
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29. Pension commitments continued

Amounts included in other financial charges

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Expected return on pension assets 0.3 0.4 1.5 1.9
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (0.4) (0.5) (1.7) (2.2)

Net charge (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) (0.3)

Amounts recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses (‘STRGL’)

Period ended Period ended 17 August 2002
23 August Continuing Discontinued

2003 operations operations Total
£m £m £m £m

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets (0.5) (1.3) (2.4) (3.7)

Actuarial loss recognised in STRGL (0.5) (1.3) (2.4) (3.7)

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets in continuing operations as a percentage of scheme assets and the present value 
of the scheme liabilities were 21.7% and 13.5% respectively in respect of the period ended 17 August 2002.

The Group contributes to individual money purchase pension plans for other employees. The Group’s costs under the money purchase pension
plans were £0.8m (August 2002: £0.6m).

30. Related party disclosures

Current period information
During the period 34 pubs were acquired for cash from Spirit Group Limited, part of the managed business demerged in March 2002,
for £12.8m.

Prior period information
Prior to IPO in May 2002, certain Directors had interests in the loan notes of the Company. All such loan notes were redeemed in full on IPO.
The loans repaid, interest accreted and interest paid during the prior period in respect of these loan notes was as follows:

Series A Loan notes repaid Interest accreted Interest paid
in period ended in period ended in period ended
17 August 2002 17 August 2002 17 August 2002

£000 £000 £000

R Shure 1,289 194 244

Series D Loan notes repaid Interest accreted Interest paid
in period ended in period ended in period ended
17 August 2002 17 August 2002 17 August 2002

£000 £000 £000

R Myers 1,099 212 270

Notes to the Accounts continued
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31. Contingent liabilities

The Demerger of the Managed pub business was carried out under the provisions of ss213-218 ICTA 1988 during the period ended 
17 August 2002.

Usually, where a chargeable asset for tax purposes is transferred from one company to another company and both companies are within the
same group, this transfer is at no gain/no loss initially for tax purposes. However, by vir tue of s179 TCGA 1992 where the transferee company
leaves the group’s ownership within six years of the date of the transfer, a capital gain or loss will arise on the transferee by reference to the
market value of the asset and the no gain/no loss acquisition consideration. Where the transferee company leaves the group under an exempt
distribution, there is an exemption from the s179 charge.

However, the exemption from charge under s179 TCGA 1992 does not apply if there is a chargeable payment (a payment not made for bona
fide commercial reasons or made for tax avoidance purposes) within five years of the exempt distribution.

A Deed of Tax Covenant was entered into by the Group and Spirit Group (Holdings) Ltd on 2 March 2002 as part of the Demerger.

Under this Deed of Tax Covenant the Group has indemnified the Managed pub business for any s179 TCGA 1992 exit charges that would arise
if the Group made a chargeable payment within 5 years of the Demerger or otherwise prevented the Demerger dividend from being an
exempt distribution.

32. Post balance sheet events

On 3 November 2003 the Group concluded a refinancing, the principal elements of which are set out below:

The following new loan notes were issued by Punch Taverns Finance plc (formerly Limited):

£m

Class A3 (R) Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2009 150
Class M1 5.883% Secured Notes due 2026 200
Class M2 Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2026 400
Class C (R) 6.468% Secured Notes due 2033 215

965

In addition the remaining fixed rate secured loans issued by Punch Funding II Limited have been replaced by identical loan notes issued by Punch
Taverns Finance plc.
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32. Post balance sheet events continued

The proceeds of these notes were used as follows:

£m

Repayment of existing loans (par value):
Punch Taverns Finance plc
Class A1 Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2008 98
Class A2 Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2011 85
Class A3 Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2015 95
Class C Secured Notes due 2027 (Fixed to 2005, Floating thereafter) 25

303

Punch Funding II Limited
Class M Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2029 192
Class N1 Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2030 45
Class O Floating Rate Secured Notes due 2030 30

267

Other group companies
Bank loans 109

Total loans repaid 679

Accrued interest, premiums on redemption and issue costs paid 19
Adjustments to cash balances retained for working capital purposes 2
Cash available for investment purposes 265

965

The refinancing simplifies the Group’s securitisation structure, since all secured loan notes are now issued by Punch Taverns Finance plc within 
a single securitisation net.

In addition to raising funds of about £265m for investment, the refinancing results in the maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings being
improved. The effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings will be reduced, although the decrease will be modest, due to the continuing
effect of the interest rate swaps the Group presently has in place.

The deficit on redeeming existing borrowings of about £7m will be expensed in the profit and loss account for the period ending 
21 August 2004, as exceptional items within financing costs.

The Group has also negotiated additional loan facilities (outside the Punch Taverns Finance plc securitisation net) of £225m, which are available 
to finance pub acquisitions.

On 6 November 2003 the Directors announced that Punch Taverns Reserve Company Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, had entered into 
an agreement relating to the purchase of the entire ordinary issued share capital of Pubmistress Ltd (the holding company of the Pubmaster
Group). The acquisition values Pubmaster at approximately £1,193m (including the assumption of £1,025m of debt) with a payment 
of approximately £5m in respect of working capital.

Pubmaster is a leading leased and tenanted pub company with an estate of over 3,100 pubs located across Great Britain.

In order to assess possible competition concerns Punch Group (Equity) Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, has entered into an agreement 
for the sale of 206 pubs (92 from the Punch Estate and 114 from the Pubmaster Estate) to Flightwater Ltd, a special purpose vehicle owned 
and managed by a third party.

In view of its size, the acquisition is conditional upon the approval of Punch Shareholders at a duly convened Extraordinary General Meeting.
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Punch Taverns plc is an innovative pub 
company which owns more than 4,500 
tenanted and leased pubs in the UK.

SECTOR SPLIT
Our pubs are predominantly community
locals catering for the needs of their regular
customers, with the remainder made up of 
a diverse range of outlets.

A. Basic Local 29%
B. Mid Market Local 28%
C. City Local 11%
D. Upmarket Local 8%
E. Young Local 2%
F. City Dry Led 2%
G. Value Dining 5%
H. Premium Dining 5%
I. Circuit 4%
J. Chameleon 4%
K. Venue 2%

GEOGRAPHIC SPLIT
Our pub estate has an excellent geographical 
spread from the Outer Hebrides to Cornwall.
The concentration of pubs is linked to the origins 
of the business and the proximity to the former 
brewery owners. Our thorough acquisitions process
targets pubs based on the potential and quality 
of the site regardless of location.

Scotland 8%
North 2%
North West 11%
Yorks and Humber 14%
West Midlands 17%
East Midlands 6%
East Anglia 1%
Wales 7%
London 8%
South East 22%
South West 4%
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Who we are
Our business at a glance



HELPING OUR RETAILERS 
BUILD BETTER PUB BUSINESSES
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